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PART I - FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We refer to Highwoods Properties, Inc. as the “Canyy’ Highwoods Realty Limited Partnership as ti@pérating Partnershipthe
Company’s common stock as “Common Stock” or “Comn®ares,” the Company’s preferred stock as “Prefe@tock” or Preferre
Shares,” the Operating Partnership’s common patiigrinterests as “Common Units,” the Operatingtrigaships preferred partnerst
interests as “Preferred Units” and sefvice properties (excluding rental residentiaits)nto which the Company and/or the Opere
Partnership have title and 100.0% ownership rigistthe “Wholly Owned Properties.” References to™aed “our” mean the Company a
the Operating Partnership, collectively, unlessdbetext indicates otherwise.

The partnership agreement provides that the Opgr&artnership will assume and pay when due, ortneise the Company for paym
of, all costs and expenses relating to the ownprsinid operations of, or for the benefit of, the @prg Partnership. The partners
agreement further provides that all expenses o€ttrapany are deemed to be incurred for the beoiefite Operating Partnership.

Certain information contained herein is presentedfaApril 22, 2010, the last practicable dateffoancial information prior to the filin
of this Quarterly Report.




(Table of Contents)

HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(Unaudited and in thousands, except share anchpee amounts)

March 31, December 31

2010 2009
Assets:
Real estate assets, at c
Land $ 348,95! $ 350,53
Buildings and tenant improvemet 2,882,44. 2,880,63:
Land held for developme| 104,14 104,14t
3,335,54! 3,335,31
Less=accumulated depreciatic (799,75Y (781,07)
Net real estate ass¢ 2,535,79 2,554,24.
For-sale residential condominiur 11,16: 12,93
Real estate and other assets, net, held foi 1,22¢ 5,031
Cash and cash equivalel 14,33¢ 23,69¢
Restricted cas 6,301 6,841
Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $4,061 $2@10, respectivel 22,79 21,06¢
Notes receivable, net of allowance of $732 and $6&ectively 3,08¢ 3,14:
Accrued straight-line rents receivable, net ofwwlioce of $2,523 and
$2,443, respectivel 83,927 82,60(
Investment in unconsolidated affiliat 65,76( 66,077
Deferred financing and leasing costs, net of acdated amortization of $54,314
and $52,129, respective 72,53¢ 73,51"
Prepaid expenses and other as 38,44 37,94’
Total Asset: $ 2,855,36‘ $ 2,887,10
Liabilities, Noncontrolling Interests in the Operating Partnership and Equity:
Mortgages and notes payal $ 1,466,44 $ 1,469,15!
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and otheiitied 110,51 117,32¢
Financing obligation 33,57+ 37,70¢
Total Liabilities 1,610,522 1,624,18
Commitments and contingenci
Noncontrolling interests in the Operating Partngr: 120,51! 129,76
Equity:
Preferred Stock, $.01 par value, 50,000,000 autbdrshares
8.625% Series A Cumulative Redeemable PreferredeSiiquidation
preference $1,000 per share), 29,092 shares issukdutstandin 29,09: 29,09:
8.000% Series B Cumulative Redeemable PreferreteSligquidation
preference $25 per share), 2,100,000 shares issukdutstandin 52,50( 52,50(
Common stock, $.01 par value, 200,000,000 authbshares
71,602,057 and 71,285,303 shares issued and aditsganespectivel 71€ 713
Additional paic-in capital 1,762,75. 1,751,39i
Distributions in excess of net income availabledommon stockholdel (722,58:) (701,93)
Accumulated other comprehensive i (3,359 (3,81)
Total Stockholder Equity 1,119,122 1,127,96
Noncontrolling interests in consolidated affilia 5,19: 5,18¢
Total Equity 1,124,311 1,133,14.
Total Liabilities, Noncontrolling Interests in ti@perating Partnership and

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanassients.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

(Unaudited and in thousands, except per share asjoun

Rental and other revenues
Operating expenses
Rental property and other expen
Depreciation and amortizatic
General and administrati
Total operating expens
Interest expense
Contractua
Amortization of deferred financing cos
Financing obligation

Other income:
Interest and other incon

Income from continuing operations before dispositia of property and condominiums and

equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates
Gains on disposition of proper
Gains on fc-sale residential condominiur
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affilia
Income from continuing operations
Discontinued operations:
Income from discontinued operatic
Net gains on disposition of discontinued operations

Net income

Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling intdeeim the Operating Partnerst
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteeeim consolidated affiliate

Dividends on preferred stock
Net income available for commor
stockholders
Earnings per common share — basic:
Income from continuing operations available for coom stockholder

Income from discontinued operations available fitmmon stockholder
Net income available for common stockhold
Weighted average common shares outstan- basic

Earnings per common share — diluted:
Income from continuing operations available for coom stockholder

Income from discontinued operations available fitmmon stockholder
Net income available for common stockhold
Weighted average common shares outstan- diluted

Dividends declared and paid per common

share

Net income available for common stockholders
Income from continuing operations available for coom stockholder
Income from discontinued operations available fitmmon stockholder

Net income available for common stockhold

See accompanying notes to consolidated financgdsients.

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2010 2009
$ 115,81¢ $ 113,22(
42.,09¢ 40,68¢
32,91: 32,88¢
8,501 8,31¢
83,51t 81,88¢
21,80: 20,57¢
83t 662
AT7€ 73E
23,11 21,97¢
1,70( 1,007
1,70( 1,007
10,89( 10,36¢
19 19
19C 347
79E 1,30(
11,89« 12,02¢
14 1,09¢
174 73
18¢€ 1,171
12,08: 13,20(
(520 (694)
(214) (18)
(1,677) (1,677)
$ 9,671 10,81:
$ 0.14 0.1¢
— 0.0z
$ 0.14 0.17
71,41« 63,63
$ 0.14 0.1t
— 0.0z
$ 0.14 0.17
75,397 67,70¢
$ 0.42°¢ 0.42¢
$ 9,49¢ 9,711
17¢ 1,10C
$ 9,671 10,81:
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQuITY
Three Months Ended March 31, 2010 and 2009
(Unaudited and in thousands, except share amounts)
Accumulated Non-
Number Other Controlling Distributions
of Additional Compre- Interests in in Excess of

Common Common Series A Series B Paid-In hensive Consolidatec Net
Shares Stock Preferred Preferred Capital Loss Affiliates Earnings

Total

Balance at

December 31, 200  71,285,30 $ 712$ 29,09:$ 52,50($ 1,751,39:% (3,810% 518:$ (701,93)%
Issuances of Common

Stock, ne 68,88¢ 1 — — 1,141 — — —
Conversion of Commot

Units to Common

Stock 92,97: 1 — — 2,927 — — —
Dividends on Common

Stock — — — — — — — (30,329
Dividends on Preferred

Stock — — — — — — — (1,677)
Adjustment of

noncontrolling

interests in the

Operating Partnershi

to fair value — — — — 5,23¢ — — —
Distributions to

noncontrolling

interests in

consolidated affiliate — — — — — — (204) —
Issuances of restricted

stock, ne 154,89 — — — — — — —
Share-based

compensation expen — 1 — — 2,054 — — —
Net (income) attributab

to noncontrolling

interests in the

Operating Partnersh — — — — — — — (520
Net (income) attributab

to noncontrolling

interests in

consolidated affiliate — — — — — — 214 (219
Comprehensive incom

Net income — — — — — — — 12,08:

Other comprehensive

income — — — — — 45¢ — —

Total comprehensive

income

1,133,14.

1,142

2,92t
(30,329)

(1,677)

5,23¢

(204)

2,05¢

(520)

12,08:
45€

12,54(

Balance at
March 31, 201( 71,602,05 71€$ 29,09:$ 52,50($% 1,762,75.% (3,355% 519:$ (722,584%

1,124,311

Accumulated Non-
Number Other Controlling Distributions
of Additional Compre- Interests in in Excess of
Common Common Series A Series B Paid-In hensive  Consolidatec Net
Shares  Stock Preferred Preferred Capital Loss Affiliates Earnings

Total

Balance at

December 31, 200 63,571,700 $ 63€$ 29,09:$ 52,50($% 1,616,09' % (4,799)% 6,17¢$ (639,28)%
Issuances of Common

Stock, ne (38,109 — — — (895) — — —

Dividends on Commo

1,060,42

(895)



Stock

Dividends on Preferrec
Stock

Adjustment of
noncontrolling
interests in the
Operating Partnersh
to fair value

Distribution to
noncontrolling
interests in
consolidated affiliate

Issuances of restricted
stock, ne:

Share-based
compensation exper

Net (income]
attributable to
noncontrolling
interests in the
Operating Partnersh

Net (income]
attributable to
noncontrolling
interests in
consolidated affiliate

Comprehensive incom
Net income
Other comprehensivi

income

Total comprehensive
income

Balance at
March 31, 200¢

_ _ _ _ —_ — — (26,969 (26,965
_ _ _ — — — — (1,677 (1,677)

_ _ — — 23,13¢ — — — 23,13¢
e — — (4) — ()
228,97 — — — — — — — —
— 2 — — 1,84( — — — 1,84z

_ _ _ _ _ — _ (694) (694)

_ _ _ — — _ 18 (18) —

_ _ _ _ — — — 13,20( 13,20(

— — — — — 94 — — 94
13,29

63,762,57 $  636$ 29,09:$ 52,50($ 1,640,17-$  (4,696% 6,19($  (655,434$ 1,068,46:

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanassients.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLows
(Unaudited and in thousands)

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2010 2009
Operating activities:
Net income $ 12,08: $ 13,20(
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigea by operating activitie:
Depreciation and amortizatic 32,91 33,42«
Amortization of lease incentive 261 29¢
Shar-based compensation expe! 2,05¢ 1,84z
Additions to allowance for doubtful accoul 1,331 1,01t
Amortization of deferred financing cos 83t 662
Amortization of past ca-flow hedges 23¢ (70
Gains on disposition of proper (193 (92
Gains on disposition of f-sale residential condominiur (290 (347)
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affilia (795) (1,300
Changes in financing obligatio 52 33t
Distributions of earnings from unconsolidated &fis 681 1,257
Changes in operating assets and liabilii
Accounts receivabl (3,929 3,69:
Prepaid expenses and other as (509 161
Accrued straigt-line rents receivabl (1,407 (1,726
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and othetitiad (3,676 (6,73)
Net cash provided by operating activit 39,75( 45,62:
Investing activities:
Additions to real estate assets and deferred lgasists (16,819 (36,927
Net proceeds from disposition of real estate a — 19t
Net proceeds from disposition of -sale residential condominiur 1,94: 3,18(
Distributions of capital from unconsolidated atities 73C 594
Net repayments of notes receiva 59 15t
Contributions to unconsolidated affiliat (36) (500
Changes in restricted cash and other investingities 59¢€ (1,540
Net cash used in investing activiti (13,52 (34.839
Financing activities:
Dividends on Common Stoc (30,327 (26,965
Dividends on Preferred Sto (1,677 (1,677)
Distributions to noncontrolling interests in thedating Partnershi (1,619 (1,719
Distributions to noncontrolling interests in coridated affiliates (204) (4)
Net proceeds from the issuance of Common S 1,142 (895)
Borrowings on revolving credit facilit 4,00( 91,00(
Repayments of revolving credit facili (4,000 (57,000
Borrowings on mortgages and notes payi — 36,55!
Repayments of mortgages and notes pay (2,725 (55,969
Additions to deferred financing cos (188 (1173
Net cash used in financing activiti (35,589 (16,785
Net decrease in cash and cash equiva (9,36)) (6,000
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the ¢b 23,69¢ 13,75;
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the pi $ 1433 $ 775

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanassients.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CAsSH FLows — Continued
(Unaudited and in thousands)

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:

Cash paid for interest, net of amounts capitalizedludes cash distributions to owners of sold progs
accounted for as financings of $126 and $110, ctsEdy)

Supplemental disclosure of non-cash investing anthfincing activities:

Unrealized gains on ce-flow hedges

Conversion of Common Units to Common

Stock

Changes in accrued capital expenditures

Write-off of fully depreciated real estate assets

Write-off of fully amortized deferred financing and laagicosts

Unrealized gains/(losses) on marketable secufigds in our non-qualified deferred
compensation pla

Settlement of financing obligatic

Adjustment of noncontrolling interests in the Opigrg Partnership to fair valt

Unrealized gain/(loss) on tax increment financiogdb

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanassients.

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2010 2009

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2010 2009
$ — $ 19¢
$ 292 $ —
$ (3,456 $ (5,807
$ 10,19« $ 7,96¢
$ 2,652 $ 2,84z
$ 204 $ (35))
$ 4,182 $ —
$ (5,239 % (23,13¢)
$ 21¢ $ (39
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
NoOTES To CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2010
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per shre data)
(Unaudited)
1.  DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESSAND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Description of Business

The Company is a fully-integrated, self-administieeand self-managed equity real estate investmast (fREIT”) that operates in tl
Southeastern and Midwestern United States. The @oyngonducts virtually all of its activities thrdughe Operating Partnership.
March 31, 2010, the Company and/or the OperatimtnBship wholly owned 308 iservice office, industrial and retail propertiesmprising
27.9 million square feet; 96 rental residentialtsinb81 acres of undeveloped land suitable forréutievelopment, of which 490 acres
considered core holdings; and an additional onieeffroperty and one industrial property that aredrvice but not yet stabilized and 35 for-
sale condominiums (which are owned through a cachesteld, majority-owned joint venture).

The Company is the sole general partner of the &ipey Partnership. At March 31, 2010, the Companyexd all of the Preferred Un
and 71.2 million, or 95.0%, of the Common Unitsmited partners (including one officer and two diogs of the Company) own t
remaining 3.8 million Common Units. Generally, tBperating Partnership is obligated to redeem eamhron Unit at the request of
holder thereof for cash equal to the value of dmres of Common Stock, $.01 par value, based omatbeage of the market price for the
trading days immediately preceding the notice datsuch redemption provided that the Company sabjition, may elect to acquire any s
Common Units presented for redemption for cash rer share of Common Stock. The Common Units ownedhbyCompany are r
redeemable. During the three months ended MarcB@H), the Company redeemed 92,971 Common Unita fike number of shares
Common Stock, which increased the percentage of@mmUnits owned by the Company from 94.8% at Deeert, 2009 to 95.0%
March 31, 2010.

Basis of Presentation

Our Consolidated Financial Statements are preperemnformity with accounting principles generallgcepted in the United Sta
(“GAAP”). Our Consolidated Statement of Income for the timeaths ended March 31, 2009 was revised from puslyareported amour
to reflect in discontinued operations the operatitor those properties sold or held for sale du@0g9 and the first three months of 2
which qualified for discontinued operations prea&ioh. Prior period amounts related to additionstowance for doubtful accounts ¢
amortization of lease commissions in our Consofidabtatements of Cash Flows have been reclassdi@dnform to the current peri
presentation.

Our Consolidated Financial Statements include tper&ting Partnership, wholly owned subsidiaries #iode entities in which we he
the controlling financial interest. All significarihtercompany transactions and accounts have bbernated. At March 31, 2010 a
December 31, 2009, we were not involved with artjties that were deemed to be variable interestiesit

The unaudited interim consolidated financial staete and accompanying unaudited consolidated fiakimformation, in the opinion
management, contain all adjustments (including mbmecurring accruals) necessary for a fair pregant of our financial position, results
operations and cash flows. We have omitted certaias and other information from the interim coitgadkd financial statements presente
this Quarterly Report on Form 1D-as permitted by SEC rules and regulations. Ti@ssesolidated Financial Statements should be re
conjunction with our 2009 Annual Report on FormKLO-
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.

NoTESs To CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sre data)

1. DEScCRIPTION OF BUSINESSAND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PoLicies - Continued
Use of Estimates

The preparation of these Consolidated Financiak8tants in accordance with GAAP requires us to nestienates and assumptions
affect the amounts reported in the consolidateafiial statements and accompanying notes. Actealtsecould differ from those estimates.

2.  ReaL ESTATE ASSETS
Dispositions

In connection with the disposition of a buildingé&ted in Raleigh, NC in the fourth quarter of 200 buyer had a limited right to |
the building to us in exchange for the sales pphes certain costs if we were unable to satisfyedain postelosing requirement |
March 1, 2010. Accordingly, the assets, liabilittesl operations of the building remained in our €didated Financial Statements during
contingency period. We satisfied this post-clogieguirement prior to the required date and as atreéke buyers right to put the building
us was terminated. Accordingly, we recognized apletad sale of the property and recognized a gaB0@® million in the first quarter
2010.
3. INVESTMENTS IN AFFILIATES

Unconsolidated Affiliates

We have equity interests ranging from 10.0% to %0if various joint ventures with unrelated thirdtpss. The combined, summari:
income statements for our unconsolidated joint wergt were as follows:

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2010 2009
Income Statements
Revenues $ 35,58¢ $ 38,86¢
Expenses:
Rental property and other expen 17,167 18,64(
Depreciation and amortizatic 9,60( 8,87
Interest expens 8,56¢ 8,97t
Total expenses 35,33: 36,48
Net income $ 25€ $ 2,382
Our share of:
Net income(1) $ 795 S 1,30(
Depreciation and amortization of real estate a: $ 33418 32X
Interest expens $  342c$  357¢
(1) Our share of net income differs from our wegghaverage ownership percentage in the joint vestoet income due to our purch

accounting and other adjustments related primawilpanagement and leasing fe
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.

NoTESs To CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sre data)

3. NVESTMENTS IN AFFILIATES — Continued
Consolidated Affiliates

We own a majority interest in Plaza ResidentialCl la joint venture which was formed to develop aed 139 forsale residenti
condominiums constructed above an office tower ligesl by us in Raleigh, NC. Feele residential condominiums in our Consolid
Balance Sheets include completed, but unsold, coimdom inventory owned by Plaza Residential at Ma3d, 2010 and December 31, 2(
We initially record receipt of deposits as accoupdyable, accrued expenses and other liabilitiesuin Consolidated Balance Sheet
accordance with the deposit method. We then recondpleted sales when units close and the remamaégash is received. We recogi
forfeiture of earnest money deposits into incomenvantitled to claim the forfeited deposit uporaledefault. During the three months en
March 31, 2010 and 2009, we received $2.1 milliod 3.3 million, respectively, in gross proceeds ascorded $1.9 million and $:
million, respectively, of cost of goods sold fromndominium sales activity.

4, CEFERRED FINANCING AND LEASING CoOSTS

The following table sets forth total deferred finarg and leasing costs, net of accumulated amddiza

March 31, December 31
2010 2009

Deferred financing cos $ 16,917 $ 16,81
Less accumulated amortizati (5,310 (4,549
11,60¢ 12,26:

Deferred leasing cos 109,93: 108,83!
Less accumulated amortizati (49,009 (47,580
60,92¢ 61,25¢

Deferred financing and leasing costs, )

net $ 72,53¢ $ 73,51,

Amortization of deferred financing and leasing sosere as follows:

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2010 2009
Amortization of deferred financing cos $ 83t $ 662
Amortization of deferred leasing costs (included@preciation and amortizatio $ 3,76¢ $ 3,86¢
Amortization of lease incentives (included in ré@tad other revenue $ 261 $ 29¢
The following table sets forth scheduled future aimation for deferred financing and leasing costs:
March 31, 2010 througt $ 13,46¢
December 31, 2010
2011 15,37:
2012 12,70¢
2013 8,95¢
2014 6,48(
Thereafter 15,55]
$ 72,53¢

10
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.

NoTESs To CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sre data)

5. MORTGAGES AND NOTES PAYABLE
Our consolidated mortgages and notes payable ¢ted$the following:

March 31, December 31

2010 2009
Secured mortgage loans $ 717,98: $ 720,72
Unsecured loans 748,45 748,42¢
Total $ 1,466,44 $ 1,469,15

At March 31, 2010, our secured mortgage loans wereired by real estate assets with an aggregatprauiated book value of $:
billion.

Our $400.0 million unsecured revolving credit fagiis scheduled to mature on February 21, 2013iaclddes an accordion feature 1
allows for an additional $50.0 million of borrowirgg@pacity subject to additional lender commitmeAssuming we continue to have th
publicly announced ratings from the credit ratingacies, the interest rate and facility fee undgrrevolving credit facility are based on
lower of the two highest publicly announced ratingased on our current credit ratings, the interats is LIBOR plus 290 basis points .
the annual facility fee is 60 basis points. Thereravno amounts outstanding under our revolving icfedility at March 31, 2010 ai
April 22, 2010. At March 31, 2010 and April 22, ZDve had $1.1 million of outstanding letters aédit, which reduces the availability
our revolving credit facility. As a result, the wmd capacity of our revolving credit facility at Mh 31, 2010 and April 22, 2010 was $3¢
million.

Our $70.0 million secured construction facility,wliich $41.7 million was outstanding at March 301@, is initially scheduled to matt
on December 20, 2010. Assuming no defaults haveromt, we have options to extend the maturity fiatéwo successive ongear period:
The interest rate is LIBOR plus 85 basis pointsr €ecured construction facility had $28.3 milliohavailability at March 31, 2010 a
April 22, 2010.

We are currently in compliance with all debt covaisaand requirements.

6. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

We had no outstanding interest rate hedge contedditarch 31, 2010 or December 31, 2009. The faligwable sets forth the effect
our past cash-flow hedges on accumulated other @repsive loss (“AOCL") and interest expense:

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2010 2009
Derivatives Designated as Cas-flow Hedges:
Amount of unrealized gain recognized in AOCL onideives (effective portion)
Interest rate sway $ — 3 19¢
Amount ofloss/(gain) reclassified out of AOCL into interespense (effective portior:
Interest rate swaf $ 23¢ $ (70

11




(Table of Contents)
HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.

NoTESs To CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sre data)

7.  NDNCONTROLLING INTERESTS
Noncontrolling Interests in the Operating Partnershp

Noncontrolling interests in the Operating Partngrsh the accompanying Consolidated Financial $tates relate to the ownershig
Common Units by various individuals and entitiehestthan the Company. The following table setshferdbncontrolling interests in t

Operating Partnership:

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2010 2009

Beginning noncontrolling interests in the Operatiartnershij $ 129,76¢ $ 111,27¢
Adjustment of noncontrolling interests in the Opigrg Partnership to fair valt (5,235 (23,13¢)
Conversion of Common Units to Common St (2,925 —
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interdstthe Operating Partnerst 52C 694
Distributions to noncontrolling interests in thedating Partnershi (1,619 (d.71%
Total noncontrolling interests in the OperatingtRarship $ 120,51¢ $ 87,11¢

The following table sets forth net income availatdecommon stockholders and transfers from norradiiitg interests in the Operati
Partnership:

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2010 2009
Net income available for comm
stockholders $ 9,671 $ 10,81:
Increase in equity from conversion of Common Utat€ommon Stoc 2,92¢ —
Change from net income available for common stoltddrs and transfers from noncontrolling intere $ 1259 ¢ 1081

Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Affiliates

Noncontrolling interests in consolidated affiliatascomponent of equity, relates to our respegtiire venture partners30.0% interest |
Markel and estimated 14% economic interest in PResidential. Each of our joint venture partneransunrelated third party.

12
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NoTESs To CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sre data)

8. DscLOSURE ABOUT FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The following summarizes the three levels of inghtt we use to measure fair value, as well assisets, noncontrolling interests in
Operating Partnership and liabilities that we retpg at fair value using those levels of inputs.

Level 1. Quoted prices in active markets for identicab#ssr liabilities.

Our Level 1 assets are investments in marketalolerisies which we use to pay benefits under our-qoalified deferred compensat
plan. Our Level 1 noncontrolling interests in thpe@ating Partnership are comprised of Common Umitsowned by the Company. C
Level 1 liabilities are our obligations to pay bétseunder our deferred compensation plan.

Level 2.0bservable inputs other than Level 1 prices, sgofuated prices for similar assets or liabilitigspted prices in markets that
not active; or other inputs that are observableaor be corroborated by observable market dataufostantially the full term of the relai
assets or liabilities. We had no Level 2 assetmbilities at March 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009

Level 3. Unobservable inputs that are supported by littlen@market activity and that are significant to fag value of the assets
liabilities.

Our Level 3 asset is our tax increment financingdthat we acquired in the fourth quarter of 20@Fich is not routinely traded &
whose fair value is determined using an estimaterojected redemption value based on quoted biddasks for similar unrated municij
bonds, and real estate assets recorded at faie walla nomrecurring basis as a result of our December 319 20Pairment analysis, whi
were valued using independent appraisals.

Our Level 3 liability is our SFHIW Harborview Plaza, LP financing obligation thamhot traded but whose fair value is determineskt
on our partner’s share of the joint venture's wagkeapital, fair market value of real estate asaptfair market value of mortgage payal
The fair value of the joint venture's working capépproximates its carrying value. The fair valoéghe joint venture's real estate assets
mortgage payable were determined using the incgypeoach to approximate the price that would be jpaian orderly transaction betwe
market participants on the measurement date.

The following tables set forth the assets and liidd® that we measure at fair value on a recurbagis by level within the fair val
hierarchy. We determine the level based on the $o\eeel of substantive input used to determinevaiue.

Level 1 Level 3
Quoted Prices
in
Active
Markets Significant
March 31, for Identical Unobservable
2010 Assets Inputs
Assets:
Marketable securities (in prepaid expenses and ateets $ 3,87¢ % 3,87¢ $ —
Tax increment financing bond (in prepaid expensebsather asset: 17,09( — 17,09(
Tota| Assets $ 20,965 $ 3,875 $ 17,09(
Noncontrolling Interests in the Operating Partnershp $ 120,51! $ 120,51 $ —
Liabilities:
Deferred compensation (in accounts payable, acaxpédnses and other
liabilities) $ 445¢ $ 445¢ $ —
SF-Harborview Plaza, LP financing obligati 12,39¢ — 12,39¢
Total Liabilities $ 16,85¢ $ 4,45¢ $ 12,39¢
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.

NoTESs To CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sre data)

8. DscLosURE ABoUT FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — Continued

Assets:

Marketable securities (in prepaid expenses and efsets

Tax increment financing bond (in prepaid expensebsather asset:
Impaired real estate ass

Total Assets

Noncontrolling Interests in the Operating Partnershp

Liabilities:
Deferred compensation (in accounts payable, acaxpdnses and other
liabilities)
SF-Harborview Plaza, LP financing obligati
Total Liabilities

The following table sets forth our Level 3 assel Aability:

Asset:
Tax Increment Financing Bond
Beginning balanc
Unrealized gain (in AOCL
Ending balanc

Liability:

SF-Harborview Plaza, LP Financing Obligation

Beginning balanc— gross financing obligatio
Principal repaymeni
Interest expense on financing obligat
Unrealized los!

Ending balanc— gross financing obligatio
Valuation allowance, n¢

Net financing obligatior

14

Level 1 Level 3
Quoted Prices
in
Active

Markets Significant

December 31 for Identical Unobservable
2009 Assets Inputs

6,13t $ 6,13t $ —
16,871 — 16,87:
32,00( — 32,00(
55,00¢ $ 6,13t $ 48,87

129,76¢ $ 129,76¢ $ =

6,89¢ $ 6,89¢ $ —
12,23( — 12,23(
19,12¢  $ 6,89¢ $ 12,23(

Three Months Ended
March 31,
2010 2009

$ 16,87 $ 17,46¢
21¢ (34)
$ 17,090 $ 17,43

$ 12,71¢ $ 13,87¢

(126€) (110)
16€ 44¢
(40 (880

12,71¢ 13,32¢
4,27¢ 3,60¢

$ 16,997 $ 16,93/
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NoTESs To CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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8. DscLosURE ABoUT FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — Continued

We acquired our tax increment financing bond in fingrth quarter of 2007. This bond amortizes tourigt in 2020 and is carried
estimated fair value in prepaid expenses and o#issets with unrealized gains/losses reported in IAOe estimated fair value
March 31, 2010 was $2.1 million below the outstagdprincipal due on the bond. We currently inteadhold this bond and do not belit
that we will be required to sell this bond befoeeavery of the bond principal. Payment of the g@acand interest for the bond is guaran
by us and, therefore, we have recorded no cresiiel related to the bond in the three months elldedh 31, 2010 and 2009. There i<
legal right of offset with the liability, which weport as a financing obligation related to thisitecrement financing bond.

Our SFHarborview Plaza, LP financing obligation is cadrig the greater of estimated fair value, net efrilated valuation allowan:
or original financing obligation of $12.7 millionThe fair value was $12.4 million and $12.2 millicat March 31, 2010 au
December 31, 2009, respectively.

The following table sets forth the carrying amouamsl fair values of our financial instruments:

Carrying
Amount Fair Value

March 31, 2010

Cash and cash equivalents $ 14,33¢ $ 14,33¢
Restricted cash $ 6,301 $ 6,301
Accounts and notes receivable $ 25,87¢ $ 25,87¢
Marketable securities (in prepaid expenses and aseets $ 3,87¢ $ 3,87¢
Tax increment financing bond (in prepaid expensebather asset: $ 17,09C $ 17,09(
Mortgages and notes payable $ 1,466,44 $ 1,486,10.
Financing obligations $ 33,57« $ 27,32¢
Deferred compensation (in accounts payable, acexpednses and other liabilitie $ 4,45¢ $ 4,45¢
Noncontrolling interests in the Operating Partngr: $ 120,51' $ 120,51!
December 31, 200!

Cash and cash equivalents $ 23,69¢ $ 23,69¢
Restricted cash $ 6,841 $ 6,841
Accounts and notes receivable $ 2421 $ 24,21
Marketable securities (in prepaid expenses and efsets $ 6,13t $ 6,13¢
Tax increment financing bond (in prepaid expensebather asset: $ 16,87. $ 16,87:
Mortgages and notes payable $ 1,469,15' $ 1,440,371
Financing obligations $ 37,70¢ $ 31,66
Deferred compensation (in accounts payable, acaxpdnses and other liabilitie $ 6,89¢ $ 6,89¢
Noncontrolling interests in the Operating Partngr: $ 129,76¢ $ 129,76¢

The carrying values of our cash and cash equivalent accounts and notes receivable are equaldppoximate fair value. The f
values of our mortgages and notes payable anddingmbligations were estimated using the incomearket approaches to approximate
price that would be paid in an orderly transacbetween market participants on the respective meamnt date.
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9. S$IARE-BASED PAYMENTS

During the three months ended March 31, 2010, wetgd under our 2009 Long Term Equity IncentivenRthe “Plan”)190,826 stoc
options at an exercise price equal to the closiagket price of a share of our common stock on #te df grant. The fair value of each op
grant is estimated on the date of grant using thelBScholes option pricing model, which resultediiweightedaverage grant date fair va
per share of $4.96. During the three months endatM31, 2010, we also granted under the Plan 8&bdres of timéased restricted sto
and 78,151 shares of total return-based restristedk with weightedwerage grant date fair values per share of $2artb $29.4(
respectively. We recorded stoblesed compensation expense of $2.1 million and ®ill®n during the three months ended March 31,0
and 2009, respectively. At March 31, 2010, theres B&1.0 million of total unrecognized stobksed compensation costs, which wil
recognized over a weighted average remaining cctoiaterm of 1.6 years.

10. O©MPREHENSIVE INCOME AND ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
The components of comprehensive income are asgllo

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2010 2009

Net income $ 12,08 % 13,20(
Other comprehensive incorr

Unrealized gain/(loss) on tax increment financiogdb 21¢ (34

Unrealized gains on ce-flow hedges — 19¢

Amortization of past ca-flow hedges 23¢ (70)

Total other comprehensive income 45¢ 94

Total comprehensive incon $ 1254($ 1329

The components of AOCL are as follows:

March 31, December 31

2010 2009
Tax increment financing bond $ 2,147 $ 2,36¢
Past cas-flow hedges 1,20¢ 1,44t
Total accumulated other comprehensive
loss $ 3,35¢ $ 3,811
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11. [DsCcONTINUED OPERATIONS

As part of our business strategy, we from timart@tselectively dispose of nawre properties. The table below sets forth theatjman:s
which qualified for classification as discontinuegerations in our Consolidated Financial Statemefite assets associated with tt
discontinued operations comprised 0.5 million squieet of office and retail properties sold durip@09 and the three months en
March 31, 2010.

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2010 2009

Rental and other revenues $ 15 $ 2,744
Operating expenses

Rental property and other expenses 1 1,10¢

Depreciation and amortization — 54C

Total operating expenses 1 1,64¢

Income before gains on disposition of discontinuedperations 14 1,09¢

Net gains on disposition of discontinued operations 174 73

$ 18§ 117

Total discontinued operations
The following table includes the major classesssets and liabilities of the properties classifischeld for sale:

March 31, December 31

2010 2009
Assets:

Land $ — $ 867
Buildings and tenant improvements — 3,87¢
Land held for development 1,197 1,197
Accumulated depreciation — (1,484
Net real estate asse 1,19 4,45¢
Deferred leasing costs, r — 20¢
Accrued straight line rents receival — 28¢
Prepaid expenses and other assets 32 77
Real estate and other assets, net, held for sale $ 1,22¢ $ 5,031
Liabilities of real estate and other assets, relt] for sale(1) $ 12 $ 12

(1) Included in accounts payable, accrued expensestand liabilities.
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12. BRNINGS PER SHARE

The following table sets forth the computation asiz and diluted earnings per common share:

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2010 2009
Earnings per common share- basic:
Numerator:
Income from continuing operatiol $ 1189+ %  12,02¢
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling int&iin the Operating Partnership from
continuing operation (510 (623)
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteeeim consolidated affiliates from continuing op@as (2149 (18)
Dividends on preferred stor (1,677 (1,677
Income from continuing operations available for coom stockholder 9,49: 9,711
Income from discontinued operatic 18¢ 1,171
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteeeim the Operating Partnership from discontinued
operations (10 (72)
Income from discontinued operations available fimmon stockholders 17¢ 1,10C
Net income available for common stockhold $ 96713 1081
Denominator:
Denominator for basic earnings per Common S—weighted average shatr 71,41 63,63:
Earnings per common shé- basic:
Income from continuing operations available for coom stockholder $ 0.14 $ 0.1¢
Income from discontinued operations available fanmon stockholdet — 0.0z
Net income available for common stockhold $ 0143 017
Earnings per common share- diluted:
Numerator:
Income from continuing operatiol $ 11,89 $ 12,02¢
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteeeim consolidated affiliates from continuing op@as (2149 (18)
Dividends on preferred stock (1,677 (1,677
Income from continuing operations available for coom stockholders before net (income)
attributable to noncontrolling interests in the @timg Partnershi 10,00: 10,33«
Income from discontinued operations available fimmon stockholders 18¢ 1,171
Net income available for common stockholders bef@te(income) attributable to noncontrollir )
interests in the Operating Partners $ 1019°3% 1150
Denominator:
Denominator for basic earnings per Common S—-weighted average shar 71,41« 63,63
Add:
Stock options using the treasury metl 164 7
Noncontrolling interests partnership ur 3,81¢ 4,06
Denominator for diluted earnings per Common Shaadjusted weighted average shares and assume )
conversiony(1) /539 67,70
Earnings per common she- diluted:
Income from continuing operations available for coom stockholder $ 0.14 $ 0.1f
Income from discontinued operations available fammon stockholder — 0.0z
Net income available for common stockhold $ 0143 0.1/
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12. BRNINGS PER SHARE — Continued

Q) Options and warrants aggregating approximatelyntiliion and 1.4 million shares were outstandingidgrthe three months enc
March 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively, but wereimdtided in the computation of diluted earnings §feare because the impac
including such shares would be «dilutive .

13. 8GMENT INFORMATION

Our principal business is the operation, acquisitod development of rental real estate propeffigsevaluate our business by proc
type and by geographic location. Each product tyge different customers and economic charactesiaicto rental rates and terms, cos
square foot of buildings, the purposes for whiclstomers use the space, the degree of maintenarmceustomer support required :
customer dependency on different economic driveersyng others. The operating results by geograpligping are also regularly review
by our chief operating decision maker for assesgerfprmance and other purposes. There are no ialdteer-segment transactions.

Our accounting policies of the segments are theesasrthose used in our Consolidated Financial igtates. All operations are within 1
United States and, at March 31, 2010, no singléoowsr of the Wholly Owned Properties generated ntbae 9.2% of our consolidat
revenues on an annualized basis.

The following table summarizes the rental incomed ather revenues and net operating income, thegpyirmdustry propertyevel
performance metric which is defined as rental ahérorevenues less rental property and other eggefgr each reportable segment:

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2010 2009
Rental and Other Revenues(1)
Office:
Atlanta, GA $ 12,13t $  11,50(
Greenville, SC 3,671 3,63¢
Kansas City, MO 3,70¢ 3,74
Memphis, TN 7,86¢ 7,032
Nashville, TN 15,11( 15,17¢
Orlando, FL 3,00¢ 2,95(
Piedmont Triad, NC 6,42¢ 6,40¢
Raleigh, NC 18,76: 18,21:
Richmond, VA 11,79« 11,71
Tampa, FL 17,94: 16,54(
Total Office Segment 100,42° 96,91«
Industrial:
Atlanta, GA 3,97t 3,94(
Piedmont Triad, NC 3,30( 4,37¢
Total Industrial Segment 7,27¢ 8,31t
Retail:
Kansas City, MO 7,692 7,618
Piedmont Triad, NC — 56
Raleigh, NC 45 30
Total Retail Segment 7,73 7,69¢
Residential
Kansas City, MO 37¢ 29z
Total Residential Segment 37¢ 29z
Total Rental and Other Revenues $ 11581t$ 113,22
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13. SGMENT INFORMATION — Continued

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2010 2009
Net Operating Income: (1)
Office:
Atlanta, GA $ 7,64C $ 6,97¢
Greenville, SC 2,281 2,28¢
Kansas City, MO 2,21: 2,24
Memphis, TN 5,27¢ 4,01¢
Nashville, TN 9,86: 9,731
Orlando, FL 1,614 1,572
Piedmont Triad, NC 3,841 4,054
Raleigh, NC 12,70z 12,11:
Richmond, VA 7,952 7,99¢
Tampa, FL 10,82: 9,87¢
Total Office Segment 64,21( 60,87:
Industrial:
Atlanta, GA 2,77 3,05¢
Piedmont Triad, NC 2,21°F 3,551
Total Industrial Segment 4,988 6,61(
Retail:
Atlanta, GA(2) (5) (6)
Kansas City, MO 4,36¢ 4,85(
Piedmont Triad, NC — 43
Raleigh, NC 16 2
Total Retail Segment 4,37 4,88¢
Residential
Kansas City, MO 23¢€ 17C
Raleigh, NC(2) (88 ©
Total Residential Segment 15C 161
Total Net Operating Income 73,722 72,53:
Reconciliation to income from continuing operationsbefore disposition of property and condominiums
and equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates
Depreciation and amortization (32,919 (32,889
General and administrative expense (8,507) (8,31%)
Interest expense (23,119 (21,97¢)
Interest and other income 1,70C 1,007
Income from continuing operations before dispositié property and condominiums and equity in eagsiof )
unconsolidated affiliate $ 1089($ 10,36
(1) Net of discontinued operatior
2 Negative NOI with no corresponding revenues reprssexpensed real estate taxes and other carrgstg associated with land h

for development that is currently zoned for thepeesive product type

20




(Table of Contents)

[This page is intentionally left blank]

21




(Table of Contents)
HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(Unaudited and in thousands, except unit and pi¢anmounts)

March 31, December 31

2010 2009
Assets:
Real estate assets, at ct
Land $ 348,95! $ 350,53
Buildings and tenant improvemet 2,882,44. 2,880,63:
Land held for developme| 104,14 104,14t
3,335,54! 3,335,31
Less=accumulated depreciatic (799,75Y (781,07
Net real estate ass¢ 2,535,79 2,554,24.
For-sale residential condominiur 11,16: 12,93:
Real estate and other assets, net, held foi 1,22¢ 5,031
Cash and cash equivalel 14,32« 23,51¢
Restricted cas 6,301 6,841
Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $4,061 $2@10, respectivel 22,79 21,06¢
Notes receivable, net of allowance of $732 and $6&ectively 3,08¢ 3,14:
Accrued straight-line rents receivable, net ofwwHioce of $2,523 and
$2,443, respectivel 83,921 82,60(
Investment in unconsolidated affiliat 64,60: 64,89:
Deferred financing and leasing costs, net of acdated amortization of $54,314
and $52,129, respective 72,53¢ 73,517
Prepaid expenses and other as 38,39( 37,94,
Total Assets $ 2,854,131 $ 2,885,73
Liabilities, Redeemable Operating Partnership Unitsand Equity:
Mortgages and notes payal $ 1,466,44 $ 1,469,15!
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and otheritied 110,51t 117,33:
Financing obligation 33,57+ 37,70¢
Total Liabilities 1,610,53 1,624,19;
Commitments and contingenci
Redeemable Operating Partnership Ut
Common Units, 3,798,150 and 3,891,121 outstandespectively 120,51! 129,76
Series A Preferred Units (liquidation preferenced$0 per unit), 29,092 shares
issued and outstandir 29,09: 29,09:
Series B Preferred Units (liquidation preferencb f&r unit), 2,100,000 shares
issued and outstandir 52,50( 52,50(
Total Redeemable Operating Partnership L 202,10° 211,36:
Equity:
Common Units
General partner Common Units, 749,914 and 747,6%&anding, respective 10,39« 10,48¢
Limited partner Common Units, 70,443,334 and 70,828 outstanding, respective 1,029,26! 1,038,32
Accumulated other comprehensive I (3,359 (3,81))
Noncontrolling interests in consolidated affiliates 5,19: 5,18:
Total Equity 1,041,501 1,050,18
Total Liabilities, Redeemable Operating Partnershifts and Equity $ 2,854,131 $ 2,885,73

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanassients.
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HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

(Unaudited and in thousands, except per unit anspunt

Rental and other revenues
Operating expenses
Rental property and other expen
Depreciation and amortizatic
General and administrati
Total operating expens
Interest expense
Contractua
Amortization of deferred financing cos
Financing obligation

Other income:
Interest and other incon

Income from continuing operations before dispositia of property and condominiums and
equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates
Gains on disposition of proper
Gains on fc-sale residential condominiur
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affilia
Income from continuing operations
Discontinued operations:
Income from discontinued operatic
Net gains on disposition of discontinued operations

Net income
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteéseim consolidated affiliate
Distributions on preferred units

Net income available for commor

unitholders

Earnings per common unit- basic:
Income from continuing operations available for coom unitholder:
Income from discontinued operations available fimmon unitholder:
Net income available for common unithold
Weighted average common units outstan(- basic

Earnings per common unit- diluted:
Income from continuing operations available for coom unitholder:
Income from discontinued operations available fimmon unitholder:
Net income available for common unithold
Weighted average common units outstan- diluted

Distributions declared and paid per common

unit

Net income available for common unitholders
Income from continuing operations available for coom unitholder:
Income from discontinued operations available fimmon unitholder:

Net income available for common unithold

See accompanying notes to consolidated financgdsients.
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Three Months Ended

March 31,

2010 2009
115,81¢ $ 113,22(
41,77¢ 40,53:
32,91 32,88¢
8,821 8,471
83,51t 81,88¢
21,80: 20,57¢
83t 662
47€ 73E
23,11 21,97¢
1,70( 1,007
1,70( 1,007
10,89( 10,36:
19 19
19C 347
801 1,267
11,90( 11,99:
14 1,09¢
174 73
18¢ 1,171
12,08¢ 13,16:
(214 (19)
(1,677) (1,677)

10,197 $ 11,46¢

014 $ 0.1t
— 0.0z
014 $ 0.17
74,82¢ 67,28¢
014 $ 0.1t
— 0.0z
014 $ 0.17
74,98¢ 67,29¢
0.42F $ 0.42¢

10,00¢ $ 10,29°
18€ 1,171

10,197 $ 11,46¢
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HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CAPITAL
Three Months Ended March 31, 2010 and 2009
(Unaudited and in thousands)

Common Units

Accumulated  Noncontrolling

Other Interests in
General Limited Comprehensive  Consolidated Total
Partner Partner Loss Affiliates Capital

Balance at December 31, 2C $ 1048 $ 1,038,320 $ (3,810 $ 518: $ 1,050,18!
Issuance of Common Units, r 11 1,131 — — 1,142
Distributions on Common Uni (317) (31,446 — — (31,767
Distributions on Preferred Uni a7 (1,660 — — (1,677
Shar-based compensation expel 21 2,03¢ — — 2,05t
Distribution to noncontrolling interests in constated

affiliates — — — (204) (2049)
Adjustment of Redeemable Common Units to fair v.

and contributions/distributions from/to the Gene

Partnet 92 9,12¢ — — 9,21¢
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling intdeeis

consolidated affiliate 2 (212 — 214 —
Comprehensive incom

Net income 121 11,96° — — 12,08t

Other comprehensive income — — 45¢ — 45¢
Total comprehensive incon 12,54¢
Ba'ance at March 31, 20: w $ :I.,029,26l $ (3,35:) $ 5,19: $ 1,041,50'

Common Units
Accumulated Noncontrolling
Other Interests in
General Limited Comprehensive  Consolidated Total
Partner Partner Loss Affiliates Capital

Balance at December 31, 2C $ 9,75¢ $ 966,37¢ $ (4,792 $ 6,17¢ $ 977,52:
Issuance of Common Units, r 9) (88€) — — (895)
Distributions on Common Uni (28%) (28,227 — — (28,509
Distributions on Preferred Uni ()] (1,660 — — (1,677
Shar-based compensation expel 18 1,82¢ — — 1,842
Distribution to noncontrolling interests in constated

affiliates — — — (4) 4)
Adjustment of Redeemable Common Units to fair val

and contributions/distributions from/to the Gener

Partnel 24C 23,78: — — 24,02!
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling intdee in

consolidated affiliate — (18) — 18 —
Comprehensive incom

Net income 131 13,03: — — 13,16

Other comprehensive income — — 94 — 94
Total comprehensive incon 13,25,
Balance at March 31, 20( $ 9,837 $ 974,23( $ (4,692) $ 6,19( $ 985,55{

See accompanying notes to consolidated financgdsients.
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HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLows
(Unaudited and in thousands)

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2010 2009
Operating activities:
Net income $ 12,08¢ $ 13,16:
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigea by operating activitie:
Depreciation and amortizatic 32,91 33,42«
Amortization of lease incentive 261 29¢
Shar-based compensation expe! 2,05¢ 1,84z
Additions to allowance for doubtful accoul 1,331 1,01t
Amortization of deferred financing cos 83t 662
Amortization of past ca-flow hedges 23¢ (70
Gains on disposition of proper (193 (92
Gains on disposition of f-sale residential condominiur (290 (347)
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affilia (801) (1,269
Changes in financing obligatio 52 33t
Distributions of earnings from unconsolidated &fis 657 1,25z
Changes in operating assets and liabilii
Accounts receivabl (3,929 3,69:
Prepaid expenses and other as (45€) 20¢
Accrued straigt-line rents receivabl (1,407 (1,726
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and othetitiad (3,675 (6,729
Net cash provided by operating activit 39,78( 45,66
Investing activities:
Additions to real estate assets and deferred lgasists (16,819 (36,927
Net proceeds from disposition of real estate a — 19t
Net proceeds from disposition of -sale residential condominiur 1,94: 3,18(
Distributions of capital from unconsolidated atities 73C 594
Net repayments of notes receiva 59 15t
Contributions to unconsolidated affiliat (36) (500
Changes in restricted cash and other investingities 59¢€ (1,540
Net cash used in investing activiti (13,52 (34.839
Financing activities:
Distributions on Common Uni (31,769 (28,509
Distributions on Preferred Uni (1,677 (1,677
Distributions to noncontrolling interests in coridated affiliates (209) (4)
Net proceeds from the issuance of Common L 1,142 (895)
Borrowings on revolving credit facilit 4,00( 91,00(
Repayments of revolving credit facili (4,000 (57,000
Borrowings on mortgages and notes payi — 36,55
Repayments of mortgages and notes pay (2,725 (55,969
Additions to deferred financing cos (226) (247
Net cash used in financing activiti (35,459 (16,749
Net decrease in cash and cash equiva (9,19 (5,916
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the gh 23,51¢ 13,64¢
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the p: $ 1432« 1,73t

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanassients.
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HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLows - Continued
(Unaudited and in thousands)

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:

Cash paid for interest, net of amounts capitalizedludes cash distributions to owners of sold progs
accounted
for as financings of $126 and $110, respectiv

Supplemental disclosure of non-cash investing anéhfincing activities:

Unrealized gains on ce-flow hedges

Changes in accrued capital expenditures

Write-off of fully depreciated real estate assets

Write-off of fully amortized deferred financing and laagicosts

Settlement of financing obligatic

Unrealized gains/(losses) on marketable secufigds in our non-qualified deferred
compensation pla

Adjustment of Redeemable Common Units to fair vi

Unrealized gain/(loss) on tax increment financiogd

See accompanying notes to consolidated financassients.
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Three Months Ended

March 31,
2010 2009

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2010 2009
$ — $ 19¢
$ (3,456 $ (5,807
$ 10,19« $ 7,96¢
$ 2,65 $ 2,84z
$ 4,182 $ —
$ 204 $ (351
$ (9,259 $ (24,159
$ 21¢ $ (34
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HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
NoTES To CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2010
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per ui data)
(Unaudited)
1.  DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESSAND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Description of Business

The Company is a fully-integrated, self-administeeand self-managed equity real estate investmast {(fREIT”) that operates in tl
Southeastern and Midwestern United States. The @oyngonducts virtually all of its activities thrdughe Operating Partnership.
March 31, 2010, the Company and/or the OperatingnB@ship wholly owned: 308 iservice office, industrial and retail propert
comprising 27.9 million square feet; 96 rental desitial units; 581 acres of undeveloped land slgtédr future development, of which 4
acres are considered core holdings; and an additare office property and one industrial propehigt are in service but not yet stabili
and 35 for-sale condominiums (which are owned thhoai consolidated, majority-owned joint venture).

The Company is the sole general partner of the &iogr Partnership. At March 31, 2010, the Companypexd all of the Preferred Un
and 71.2 million, or 95.0%, of the Common Unitsmited partners (including one officer and two diogs of the Company) own t
remaining 3.8 million Common Units. Generally, tBperating Partnership is obligated to redeem eamhron Unit at the request of
holder thereof for cash equal to the value of dree of Common Stock, $.01 par value, based omakeage of the market price for the
trading days immediately preceding the notice datsuch redemption provided that the Company sabjition, may elect to acquire any s
Common Units presented for redemption for cash rer share of Common Stock. The Common Units ownedhbyCompany are r
redeemable. During the three months ended MarcB@H), the Company redeemed 92,971 Common Unita fike number of shares
Common Stock, which increased the percentage ofm@mmUnits owned by the Company from 94.8% at Deearth, 2009 to 95.0%
March 31, 2010.

Basis of Presentation

Our Consolidated Financial Statements are preperembnformity with accounting principles generallgcepted in the United Sta
(“GAAP”). Our Consolidated Statement of Income for the timeaths ended March 31, 2009 was revised from puslyareported amour
to reflect in discontinued operations the operatitar those properties sold or held for sale du@0g9 and the first three months of 2
which qualified for discontinued operations prea&ioh. Prior period amounts related to additionstowance for doubtful accounts ¢
amortization of lease commissions in our ConsodidaBtatement of Cash Flows have been reclassifiexbiiform to the current peri
presentation.

Our Consolidated Financial Statements include wholned subsidiaries and those entities in whichhaee the controlling financi
interest. All significant intercompany transacti@rs accounts have been eliminated. At March 310 20d December 31, 2009, we were
involved with any entities that were deemed to dgable interest entities.

The unaudited interim consolidated financial staete and accompanying unaudited consolidated fiakimformation, in the opinion
management, contain all adjustments (including mbmecurring accruals) necessary for a fair pregant of our financial position, results
operations and cash flows. We have omitted certaias and other information from the interim coraikd financial statements presente
this Quarterly Report on Form 1D-as permitted by SEC rules and regulations. Ti@ssesolidated Financial Statements should be re
conjunction with our 2009 Annual Report on FormKLO-
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1. DEScCRIPTION OF BUSINESSAND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PoLicies - Continued
Use of Estimates

The preparation of these Consolidated Financiak8tants in accordance with GAAP requires us to nestienates and assumptions
affect the amounts reported in the consolidateafiial statements and accompanying notes. Actealtsecould differ from those estimates.

2.  ReaL ESTATE ASSETS
Dispositions

In connection with the disposition of a buildingé&ted in Raleigh, NC in the fourth quarter of 200 buyer had a limited right to |
the building to us in exchange for the sales pphes certain costs if we were unable to satisfyedain postelosing requirement |
March 1, 2010. Accordingly, the assets, liabilittesl operations of the building remained in our €didated Financial Statements during
contingency period. We satisfied this post-clogieguirement prior to the required date and as atreéke buyers right to put the building
us was terminated. Accordingly, we recognized apletad sale of the property and recognized a gaB0@® million in the first quarter
2010.
3. INVESTMENTS IN AFFILIATES

Unconsolidated Affiliates

We have equity interests ranging from 10.0% to %0if various joint ventures with unrelated thirdtpss. The combined, summari:
income statements for our unconsolidated joint wergt were as follows:

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2010 2009
Income Statements
Revenues $ 34,56¢ $ 37,49:
Expenses:
Rental property and other expen 16,527 18,10(
Depreciation and amortizatic 9,231 8,454
Interest expens 8,361 8,762
Total expense 34,12¢ 35,31¢
Income before disposition of property $ 444 $ 2,17
Our share of:
Net income(1) $ 801 $ 1,26:
Depreciation and amortization of real estate a: $ 3308 320
Interest expens $ 339 $ 3591
(1) Our share of net income differs from our wegghaverage ownership percentage in the joint vestoet income due to our purch

accounting and other adjustments related primawilpanagement and leasing fe
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3. NVESTMENTS IN AFFILIATES - Continued
Consolidated Affiliates

We own a majority interest in Plaza ResidentialCl la joint venture which was formed to develop aed 139 forsale residenti
condominiums constructed above an office tower ligesl by us in Raleigh, NC. Feele residential condominiums in our Consolid
Balance Sheets include completed, but unsold, coimdom inventory owned by Plaza Residential at Ma3d, 2010 and December 31, 2(
We initially record receipt of deposits as accoupdyable, accrued expenses and other liabilitiesuin Consolidated Balance Sheet
accordance with the deposit method. We then recondpleted sales when units close and the remamaégash is received. We recogi
forfeiture of earnest money deposits into incomenvantitled to claim the forfeited deposit uporaledefault. During the three months en
March 31, 2010 and 2009, we received $2.1 milliod 3.3 million, respectively, in gross proceeds ascorded $1.9 million and $:
million, respectively, of cost of goods sold fromndominium sales activity.

4, CEFERRED FINANCING AND LEASING CoOSTS

The following table sets forth total deferred finarg and leasing costs, net of accumulated amddiza

March 31, December 31
2010 2009

Deferred financing cos $ 16,917 $ 16,81
Less accumulated amortizati (5,310 (4,549
11,60¢ 12,26:

Deferred leasing cos 109,93: 108,83!
Less accumulated amortizati (49,009 (47,580
60,92¢ 61,25¢

Deferred financing and leasing costs, )

net $ 72,53¢ $ 73,51,

Amortization of deferred financing and leasing sosere as follows:

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2010 2009
Amortization of deferred financing cos $ 83t $ 662
Amortization of deferred leasing costs (included@preciation and amortizatio $ 3,76¢ $ 3,86¢
Amortization of lease incentives (included in ré@tad other revenue $ 261 $ 29¢
The following table sets forth scheduled future aimation for deferred financing and leasing costs:
March 31, 2010 througt $ 13,46¢
December 31, 2010
2011 15,37:
2012 12,70¢
2013 8,95¢
2014 6,48(
Thereafter 15,55]
$ 72,53¢
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5. MORTGAGES AND NOTES PAYABLE
Our consolidated mortgages and notes payable ¢ted$the following:

March 31, December 31

2010 2009
Secured mortgage loans $ 717,98: $ 720,72
Unsecured loans 748,45 748,42¢
Total $ 1,466,44 $ 1,469,15

At March 31, 2010, our secured mortgage loans wereired by real estate assets with an aggregatprauiated book value of $:
billion.

Our $400.0 million unsecured revolving credit fagiis scheduled to mature on February 21, 2013iaclddes an accordion feature 1
allows for an additional $50.0 million of borrowirgg@pacity subject to additional lender commitmeAssuming we continue to have th
publicly announced ratings from the credit ratingacies, the interest rate and facility fee undgrrevolving credit facility are based on
lower of the two highest publicly announced ratingased on our current credit ratings, the interats is LIBOR plus 290 basis points .
the annual facility fee is 60 basis points. Thereravno amounts outstanding under our revolving icfedility at March 31, 2010 ai
April 22, 2010. At March 31, 2010 and April 22, ZDve had $1.1 million of outstanding letters aédit, which reduces the availability
our revolving credit facility. As a result, the wmd capacity of our revolving credit facility at Mh 31, 2010 and April 22, 2010 was $3¢
million.

Our $70.0 million secured construction facility,wliich $41.7 million was outstanding at March 301@, is initially scheduled to matt
on December 20, 2010. Assuming no defaults haveromt, we have options to extend the maturity fiatéwo successive ongear period:
The interest rate is LIBOR plus 85 basis pointsr €ecured construction facility had $28.3 milliohavailability at March 31, 2010 a
April 22, 2010.

We are currently in compliance with all debt covaisaand requirements.

6. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

We had no outstanding interest rate hedge contedditarch 31, 2010 or December 31, 2009. The faligwable sets forth the effect
our past cash-flow hedges on accumulated other @repsive loss (“AOCL") and interest expense:

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2010 2009
Derivatives Designated as Cas-flow Hedges:
Amount of unrealized gain recognized in AOCL onideives (effective portion)
Interest rate sway $ — 3 19¢
Amount ofloss/(gain) reclassified out of AOCL into interespense (effective portior:
Interest rate swaf $ 23¢ $ (70

7. NONCONTROLLING INTERESTS

Noncontrolling interests in consolidated affiligtascomponent of equity, relates to our respegtiire venture partners30.0% interest i
Markel and estimated 14% economic interest in PResidential. Each of our joint venture partneransunrelated third party.
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8. DscLOSURE ABOUT FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The following summarizes the three levels of inghtt we use to measure fair value, as well assisets, noncontrolling interests in
Operating Partnership and liabilities that we retpg at fair value using those levels of inputs.

Level 1. Quoted prices in active markets for identicab#ssr liabilities.

Our Level 1 assets are investments in marketalolerisies which we use to pay benefits under our-qoalified deferred compensat
plan. Our Level 1 noncontrolling interests in thpe@ating Partnership are comprised of Common Umitsowned by the Company. C
Level 1 liabilities are our obligations to pay bétseunder our deferred compensation plan.

Level 2.0bservable inputs other than Level 1 prices, sgofuated prices for similar assets or liabilitigspted prices in markets that
not active; or other inputs that are observableaor be corroborated by observable market dataufostantially the full term of the relai
assets or liabilities. We had no Level 2 assetmbilities at March 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009

Level 3. Unobservable inputs that are supported by littlen@market activity and that are significant to fag value of the assets
liabilities.

Our Level 3 asset is our tax increment financingdthat we acquired in the fourth quarter of 20@Fich is not routinely traded &
whose fair value is determined using an estimaterojected redemption value based on quoted biddasks for similar unrated municij
bonds, and real estate assets recorded at faie walla nomrecurring basis as a result of our December 319 20Pairment analysis, whi
were valued using independent appraisals.

Our Level 3 liability is our SFHIW Harborview Plaza, LP financing obligation thamhot traded but whose fair value is determineskt
on our partnes share of the joint venture's working capital; faarket value of real estate assets and fair maedae of mortgage payak
The fair value of the joint venture's working capépproximates its carrying value. The fair valoéghe joint venture's real estate assets
mortgage payable were determined using the incgypeoach to approximate the price that would be jpaian orderly transaction betwe
market participants on the measurement date.

The following tables set forth the assets and liidd® that we measure at fair value on a recurbagis by level within the fair val
hierarchy. We determine the level based on the $o\eeel of substantive input used to determinevaiue.

Level 1 Level 3
Quoted Prices
in
Active
Markets Significant
March 31, for Identical Unobservable
2010 Assets Inputs
Assets:
Marketable securities (in prepaid expenses and ateets $ 3,87¢ % 3,87¢ $ —
Tax increment financing bond (in prepaid expensebather assets) 17,09( — 17,09(
Tota| Assets $ 20,965 $ 3,875 $ 17,09(
Liabilities:
Deferred compensation (in accounts payable, acexpenses and other
liabilities) $ 4,45¢ $ 445¢ $ —
SF-Harborview Plaza, LP financing obligati 12,39¢ — 12,39¢
Total Liabilities $ 16,85 $ 445¢ $ 12,39¢
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8. DscLosURE ABOUT FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - Continued
Level 1 Level 3
Quoted Prices
in
Active
Markets Significant
December 31 for Identical Unobservable
2009 Assets Inputs
Assets:
Marketable securities (in prepaid expenses and atteets $ 6,13t $ 6,13t $ —
Tax increment financing bond (in prepaid expensebsather asset: 16,87 — 16,87:
Impaired real estate ass 32,00( — 32,00(
Tota| Assets $ 55,00( $ 6,135 $ 48,87:
Liabilities:
Deferred compensation (in accounts payable, acaxpdnses and other
liabilities) $ 6,89¢ $ 6,89¢ $ —
SF-Harborview Plaza, LP financing obligati 12,23( — 12,23(
Total Liabilities $ 19,12¢ $ 6,89¢ $ 12,23(

The following table sets forth our Level 3 assel Aability:

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2010 2009
Asset:
Tax Increment Financing Bond
Beginning balanc $ 16,87: $ 17,46¢
Unrealized gain (in AOCL 21¢ (39)
Ending balanc $ 17,090 $ 17,43¢
Liability:
SF-Harborview Plaza, LP Financing Obligation
Beginning balanc- gross financing obligatio $ 12,71¢ $ 13,87¢
Principal repayment (12€) (110
Interest expense on financing obligat 16€ 44C
Unrealized los: (40 (880
Ending balanc- gross financing obligatio 12,71¢ 13,32¢
Valuation allowance, ne 4,27¢ 3,60¢
Net financing obligatior $ 16,99: $ 16,93

We acquired our tax increment financing bond in fingrth quarter of 2007. This bond amortizes tourigt in 2020 and is carried
estimated fair value in prepaid expenses and o#issets with unrealized gains/losses reported in IAOhe estimated fair value
March 31, 2010 was $2.1 million below the outstagdprincipal due on the bond. We currently inteachold this bond and do not belit
that we will be required to sell this bond befogeavery of the bond principal. Payment of the ppatand interest for the bond is guaran
by us and, therefore, we have recorded no cresiiel related to the bond in the three months eltdedh 31, 2010 and 2009. There i<
legal right of offset with the liability, which weeport as a financing obligation related to thisitecrement financing bond.
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8. DscLosURE ABOUT FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - Continued

Our SFHarborview Plaza, LP financing obligation is cadrig the greater of estimated fair value, net efrilated valuation allowan:
or original financing obligation of $12.7 millionThe fair value was $12.4 million and $12.2 millicat March 31, 2010 au
December 31, 2009, respectively.

The following table sets forth the carrying amouamsl fair values of our financial instruments:

Carrying
Amount Fair Value

March 31, 2010

Cash and cash equivalents $ 14,32¢ $ 14,32¢
Restricted cash $ 6,301 $ 6,301
Accounts and notes receivable $ 25,87¢ $ 25,87¢
Marketable securities (in prepaid expenses and aseets $ 3,87¢ $ 3,87¢
Tax increment financing bond (in prepaid expensebather asset: $ 17,09C $ 17,09(
Mortgages and notes payable $ 1,466,44 $ 1,486,10.
Financing obligations $ 33,57« $ 27,32¢
Deferred compensation (in accounts payable, acexpednses and other liabilitie $ 4,45¢ $ 4,45¢
December 31, 200!

Cash and cash equivalents $ 23,51¢ $ 23,51¢
Restricted cash $ 6,841 $ 6,841
Accounts and notes receivable $ 24,21: $ 24,21
Marketable securities (in prepaid expenses and eifsets $ 6,13t $ 6,13¢
Tax increment financing bond (in prepaid expensebsather asset: $ 16,87. $ 16,87:
Mortgages and notes payable $ 1,469,15! $ 1,440,371
Financing obligations $ 37,70¢ $ 31,66¢
Deferred compensation (in accounts payable, acaxpdnses and other liabilitie $ 6,89¢ $ 6,89¢

The carrying values of our cash and cash equivalent accounts and notes receivable are equaldppoximate fair value. The f
values of our mortgages and notes payable anddingmbligations were estimated using the incomenarket approaches to approximate
price that would be paid in an orderly transactietween market participants on the respective rmeasant date.
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9. S$IARE-BASED PAYMENTS

During the three months ended March 31, 2010, wetgd under our 2009 Long Term Equity IncentivenRthe “Plan”)190,826 stoc
options at an exercise price equal to the closiagket price of a share of our common stock on #te df grant. The fair value of each op
grant is estimated on the date of grant using thelBScholes option pricing model, which resultediiweightedaverage grant date fair va
per share of $4.96. During the three months endatM31, 2010, we also granted under the Plan 8&bdres of timéased restricted sto
and 78,151 shares of total return-based restristedk with weightedwerage grant date fair values per share of $2artb $29.4(
respectively. We recorded stoblesed compensation expense of $2.1 million and ®ill®n during the three months ended March 31,0
and 2009, respectively. At March 31, 2010, theres B&1.0 million of total unrecognized stobksed compensation costs, which wil
recognized over a weighted average remaining cctoiaterm of 1.6 years.

10. O©MPREHENSIVE INCOME AND ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

The components of comprehensive income are asgllo

Net income
Other comprehensive incorr
Unrealized gain/(loss) on tax increment financiogdb
Unrealized gains on ce-flow hedges
Amortization of past ca-flow hedges
Total other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive incon

The components of AOCL are as follows:

Tax increment financing bond
Past cas-flow hedges

Total accumulated other comprehensive
loss

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2010 2009
$ 12,08¢ $ 13,16:
21¢ (34)
— 19¢
23¢ (70)
45€ 94
March 31, December 31
2010 2009
$ 2,147 $ 2,36¢
1,20¢ 1,44¢
$ 3,35 $ 3,811
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11. [DsCcONTINUED OPERATIONS

As part of our business strategy, we from timart@tselectively dispose of nawre properties. The table below sets forth theatjman:s
which qualified for classification as discontinuegerations in our Consolidated Financial Statemefite assets associated with tt
discontinued operations comprised 0.5 million squieet of office and retail properties sold durip@09 and the three months en
March 31, 2010.

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2010 2009

Rental and other revenues $ 15 $ 2,744
Operating expenses

Rental property and other expenses 1 1,10€

Depreciation and amortization — 54(C

Total operating expenses 1 1,64¢

Income before gains on disposition of discontinuedperations 14 1,09¢

Net gains on disposition of discontinued operations 174 73

Total discontinued operations $  18€3% 1171

The following table includes the major classesssets and liabilities of the properties classifischeld for sale:

March 31, December 31

2010 2009
Assets:

Land $ — $ 867
Buildings and tenant improvements — 3,87¢
Land held for development 1,197 1,197
Accumulated depreciation — (1,484
Net real estate asse 1,19 4,45¢
Deferred leasing costs, r — 20¢
Accrued straight line rents receival — 28¢
Prepaid expenses and other assets 32 77
Real estate and other assets, net, held for sale $ 1,22¢ $ 5,031
Liabilities of real estate and other assets, relt] for sale(1) $ 12 $ 12

(1) Included in accounts payable, accrued expensestand liabilities.
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12. EBRNINGS PER UNIT
The following table sets forth the computation aéic and diluted earnings per common unit:

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2010 2009
Earnings per common unit- basic:
Numerator:
Income from continuing operatiol $ 11,90($ 11,99:
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteeeim consolidated affiliates from continuing opteas (2149) (18)
Distributions on preferred uni (1,677 (1,677
Income from continuing operations available for coom unitholder: 10,00¢ 10,291
Income from discontinued operations available fimmon unitholders 18¢ 1,171
Net income available for common unithold $ 1019'3$ 11 46¢
Denominator:
Denominator for basic earnings per Common - weighted average uni $ &
Earnings per common ur- basic:
Income from continuing operations available for coom unitholder: $ 014 % 0.1f
Income from discontinued operations available finmon unitholder. = 0.0z
Net income available for common unithold $ 0143 017
Earnings per common unit- diluted:
Numerator:
Income from continuing operatiol $ 1190($% 11,99
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteeeim consolidated affiliates from continuing opeas (2149) (18)
Distributions on preferred units (1,677 (1,677)
Income from continuing operations available for coom unitholder: 10,00¢ 10,291
Income from discontinued operations available fimmon unitholders 18€ 1,171
Net income available for common unithold $ 1019:$ 11 46¢
Denominator:
Denominator for basic earnings per Common —weighted average uni 74,82¢ 67,28¢
Add:
Stock options using the treasury method 164 7
Denominator for diluted earnings per Common Uraidjusted weighted average units and assumed
conversiony(1) 74,98¢ 67,29¢
Earnings per common ur- diluted:
Income from continuing operations available for coom unitholder: $ 0.14 $ 0.1t
Income from discontinued operations available fommon unitholder. — 0.0z
Net income available for common unithold $ 014% 017
(1) Options and warrants aggregating approximatelyn@iliion and 1.4 million shares were outstandingidgrthe three months enc

March 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively, but wereimdtided in the computation of diluted earnings §feare because the impac
including such shares would be «dilutive .
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13. BGMENT INFORMATION

Our principal business is the operation, acquisiaod development of rental real estate propeffigsevaluate our business by proc
type and by geographic location. Each product tyge different customers and economic characteyiaicto rental rates and terms, cos
square foot of buildings, the purposes for whiclstomers use the space, the degree of maintenarmceustomer support required :
customer dependency on different economic driveersyng others. The operating results by geograpligping are also regularly review
by our chief operating decision maker for assesgerfprmance and other purposes. There are no ialdteer-segment transactions.

Our accounting policies of the segments are theesasrthose used in our Consolidated Financial igtates. All operations are within 1
United States and, at March 31, 2010, no singléoowsr of the Wholly Owned Properties generated ntbae 9.2% of our consolidat
revenues on an annualized basis.

The following table summarizes the rental incomed ather revenues and net operating income, thegpyirmdustry propertyevel
performance metric which is defined as rental ahérorevenues less rental property and other eggefar each reportable segment:

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2010 2009
Rental and Other Revenues(1)
Office:
Atlanta, GA $ 12,13t $  11,50(
Greenville, SC 3,671 3,63¢
Kansas City, MO 3,70¢ 3,74
Memphis, TN 7,86¢ 7,032
Nashville, TN 15,11( 15,17¢
Orlando, FL 3,00¢ 2,95(
Piedmont Triad, NC 6,42¢ 6,40¢
Raleigh, NC 18,76: 18,21
Richmond, VA 11,79« 11,71
Tampa, FL 17,94: 16,54(
Total Office Segment 100,42° 96,91«
Industrial:
Atlanta, GA 3,97¢ 3,94(
Piedmont Triad, NC 3,30( 4,37¢
Total Industrial Segment 7,27¢ 8,31t
Retail:
Kansas City, MO 7,692 7,618
Piedmont Triad, NC — 56
Raleigh, NC 45 30
Total Retail Segment 7,73 7,69¢
Residential
Kansas City, MO 37¢ 29z
Total Residential Segment 37¢ 29z
Total Rental and Other Revenues $ 11581t$ 113,22
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HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

NoTESs To CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per ui data)

13. SGMENT INFORMATION - Continued

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2010 2009
Net Operating Income: (1)
Office:
Atlanta, GA $ 7,672 % 6,99:¢
Greenville, SC 2,291 2,29(
Kansas City, MO 2,22: 2,25(
Memphis, TN 5,301 4,02¢
Nashville, TN 9,90t 9,752
Orlando, FL 1,621 1,57¢
Piedmont Triad, NC 3,86¢ 4,06:
Raleigh, NC 12,75¢ 12,13¢
Richmond, VA 7,981 8,01z
Tampa, FL 10,86¢ 9,90(
Total Office Segment 64,48¢ 61,00:
Industrial:
Atlanta, GA 2,78 3,06¢€
Piedmont Triad, NC 2,22¢ 3,55¢
Total Industrial Segment 5,00 6,62¢
Retail:
Atlanta, GA(2) (5) (6)
Kansas City, MO 4,38¢ 4,86(
Piedmont Triad, NC — 43
Raleigh, NC 16 2
Total Retail Segment 4,39¢ 4,89¢
Residential
Kansas City, MO 23¢€ 17C
Raleigh, NC(2) (88 ©
Total Residential Segment 15C 161
Total Net Operating Income 74,04 72,68
Reconciliation to income from continuing operationsbefore disposition of property and condominiums
and equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates
Depreciation and amortization (32,919 (32,889
General and administrative expense (8,827 (8,477
Interest expense (23,119 (21,97¢)
Interest and other income 1,70C 1,007
Income from continuing operations before dispositié property and condominiums and equity in eagsiof )
unconsolidated affiliate $ 1089($ 10,36
(1) Net of discontinued operatior
2 Negative NOI with no corresponding revenues reprssexpensed real estate taxes and other carrgstg associated with land h

for development that is currently zoned for thepeesive product type
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT’'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FI NANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The Company is a fully integrated, self-administesand selfmanaged equity REIT that provides leasing, managenaevelopmen
construction and other custometated services for our properties and for thiadtips. The Company conducts virtually all of itgities
through the Operating Partnership and is its seleetnl partner. At March 31, 2010, we owned or &adnterest in 378 iservice office
industrial and retail properties, encompassing @axprately 35.7 million square feet, which include®e office development property and
industrial development property that had not yetcheed the earlier of original projected stabilizatidate or 95% occupancy aggrege
348,000 square feet and a 12.5% interest in a @81sQuare foot office property directly owned bg thompany (included in the Compasiy’
Consolidated Financial Statements, but not includettie Operating Partnership’s Consolidated Firs@r&gtatements), 35 fagale residentii
condominiums and 514 rental residential units. \Webmsed in Raleigh, North Carolina, and our priggeand development land are loci
in Florida, Georgia, lowa, Maryland, Mississippijddouri, North Carolina, South Carolina, Tennessee Virginia. Additional informatia
about us can be found on our website at www.higldsamm. Information on our website is not part of thisa@terly Report.

You should read the following discussion and analys conjunction with the accompanying Consolidaténancial Statements &
related notes contained elsewhere in this Quarkelyort.

DiscLOSURE REGARDING FORWARD-L OOKING STATEMENTS

Some of the information in this Quarterly Reportymzontain forwardeoking statements. Such statements include, iticodar,
statements about our plans, strategies and praspader this section and under the heading “Busihé&®u can identify forwardeoking
statements by our use of forward-looking terminglegich as “may,” “will,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “stimate,” “continue”or other simila
words. Although we believe that our plans, intemsicand expectations reflected in or suggested bl sarwardiooking statements &
reasonable, we cannot assure you that our platentions or expectations will be achieved. Whensatering such forwartboking
statements, you should keep in mind the followingpértant factors that could cause our actual redwaltdiffer materially from tho:
contained in any forward-looking statement:

« the financial condition of our customers could derate;

« we may not be able to lease or release secondaj@mespace, defined as previously occupied spgatebecomes available for lee
quickly or on as favorable terms as old lea

« we may not be able to lease our newly construatéldibgs as quickly or on as favorable terms aginélly anticipated,;

« Wwe may not be able to complete development, adgprisireinvestment, disposition or joint venturejpcts as quickly or on
favorable terms as anticipate

« development activity by our competitors in our &rig markets could result in an excessive supplpftite, industrial and ret:
properties relative to customer dema

« our Southeastern and Midwestern United States rsankay suffer declines in economic growth;
« unanticipated increases in interest rates coule:ase our debt service costs;

« we may not be able to meet our liquidity requiretaesr obtain capital on favorable terms to fund warking capital needs a
growth initiatives or to repay or refinance outstiug debt upon maturity; ar

- the Company could lose key executive officers.
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This list of risks and uncertainties, however, @ imtended to be exhaustive. You should also wevthe other cautionary statements
make in “ltem 1A. Business — Risk Factors” setiant our 2009 Annual Report on Form

10-K. Given these uncertainties, you should notelandue reliance on forwatdeking statements. We undertake no obligatic
publicly release the results of any revisions testhforwardeoking statements to reflect any future eventsimmumstances or to reflect 1
occurrence of unanticipated events.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
Our Strategic Plan focuses on:
« owning high-quality, differentiated real estateessn the best submarkets in our primary marleetd;
« maintaining a conservative, flexible balance shét#t ample liquidity to meet our funding needs.

Execution of our Plan includes (1) growing net @pieig income at our existing properties through cemtrated leasing, as
management and customer service efforts and (Blolgwng properties in ifitl locations and acquiring strategic propertibattare accreti
to longterm earnings and stockholder value. While we owt aperate a limited number of industrial, retaitl aesidential properties, ¢
operating results depend heavily on successfuligitey and operating our office properties. Econogrimwth in Florida, Georgia, Not
Carolina and Tennessee is and will continue torbengortant determinative factor in predicting duture operating results. Our portfolio |
changed significantly over the past five years and/ consists of a higher proportion of Class A @&groperties, which are gener
expected to outperform competitive properties inaare markets. We have repositioned our portfplimarily by selling nornzore propertie
and developing properties in in-fill locations. Owral estate professionals are seasoned and tgted. Our senior leadership team
significant experience and maintains important tiefeships with market participants in each of ouwimary markets. Our focus for t
remainder of 2010 is to lease and operate ouriegigortfolio as effectively and efficiently as itde, dispose of certain nawore real esta
assets and acquire and develop additional redkessaets that improve the overall quality of centfiplio and generate attractive returns «
the long-term for our stockholders.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Results for the three months ended March 31, 208 wevised from previously reported amounts ttecefin discontinued operatic
the operations for those properties sold or heldstde during 2009 and the first three months df@@hich qualified for discontinu
operations presentation.

Three Months Ended March 31, 2010 and 2009
Rental and Other Revenues

Rental and other revenues from continuing operativare 2.3% higher in the first three months of®@% compared to the first th
months of 2009 primarily due to higher averageakrdtes in our same property portfolio, the adtjois of the 4200 Cypress building
Tampa, FL in the fourth quarter of 2009 and thetroution of development properties placed in sevin 2009, partly offset by low
termination fees and lower occupancy levels insaume property portfolio resulting from continuedmemic weakness and lower demanc
office and industrial space.

We expect rental and other revenues for the remaiofd2010, adjusted for any discontinued operatiar2010, to increase over the si

period in 2009 due to the contribution of acquisis made during 2009 and 2010 and developmentagisogelivered during 2009, par
offset by lower occupancy levels in our same prgpeortfolio.
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Operating Expenses

Rental property and other expenses were 3.5% hightre first three months of 2010 as comparech®first three months of 20
primarily due to the acquisition of the 4200 Cyprésilding in Tampa, FL in the fourth quarter of020and the contribution of developm
properties delivered in 2009, partly offset by 1.18%er expenses in our same property portfolio froranagemens’ efforts to reduc
operating expenses. As a result, operating madgifined as rental and other revenues less rentpepy and other expenses expressec
percentage of rental and other revenues, was Iliffiwrer at 63.7% in the first three months of 2Gcompared to 64.1% in the first tt
months of 2009.

Depreciation and amortization was relatively undethin the first three months of 2010 as compaoeithe: first three months of 20
primarily due to the acquisition of the 4200 Cyprésilding in Tampa, FL in the fourth quarter of020and the contribution of developm
properties placed in service in 2009, offset bydowdepreciation as a result of early lease ternanst

General and administrative expenses were relatwethanged in the first three months of 2010 aspesed to the first three months
2009 primarily due to higher deferred compensaérpense caused by an increase in the value of tabtkesecurities held under our non-
qualified deferred compensation plan, offset bydowompensation costs resulting from lower headcand lower aggregate short and long-
term incentive compensation.

Other Income

Other income was $0.7 million higher in the filstede months of 2010 as compared to the first threeths of 2009 primarily due to 1
yearover-year change in the valuation adjustment aketable securities held under our non-qualifieféded compensation plan.

I nterest Expense

Interest expense was 5.9% higher in the first timeaths of 2010 as compared to the first three hsof 2009 primarily due to low
capitalized interest resulting from decreased dgpraknt in process. We anticipate interest experiseantinue to increase in the remain
of 2010 due to higher rates on our floating ratetdeigher fees on our new revolving credit fagijlinigher amortization of deferred financ
costs and lower capitalized interest.
Equity in Earnings of Unconsolidated Affiliates

Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates vi&s5 million lower in the first three months of @Das compared to the first th
months of 2009 primarily due to early lease terriimes in one of our joint ventures.

Discontinued Operations
The Company classified income of $0.2 million arid2$million as discontinued operations in the fitaee months of 2010 and 20

respectively. These amounts relate to 0.5 millignase feet of office and retail properties soldimy2009 and the first three months of 2(
and include net gains on the sale of these prgseofi $0.2 million and $0.1 million in the firstrée months of 2010 and 2009, respectively.
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LiQuiDiTy AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Overview

Our goal is to maintain a conservative and flexidéance sheet with access to multiple sourcebf @nd equity capital and suffici
availability under our credit facilities. We genkyaise rents received from customers to fund quarating expenses, capital expenditures
distributions. To fund property acquisitions, deyghent activity or building renovations and repaptdupon maturity, we may use curl
cash balances, sell assets, obtain new debt, usewalving credit facility and/or issue equity. Qdebt generally consists of mortgage ¢
unsecured debt securities and borrowings undesexured and unsecured credit facilities.
Statements of Cash Flows

We report and analyze our cash flows based on tipgractivities, investing activities and financiagtivities. The following table s¢
forth the changes in the Company’s cash flows (Bdausands):

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2010 2009 Change
Cash Provided By Operating Activities $ 39,75( $ 45,62. $ (5,87))
Cash (Used In) Investing Activities (13,529 (34,839 21,315
Cash (Used In) Financing Activities (35,589 (16,782 (18,807
Total Cash Flows $  (936)%  (6000% (3,361

In calculating cash flow from operating activitieepreciation and amortization, which are wash expenses, are added back t
income. As a result, we have historically generagubsitive amount of cash from operating actisitierom period to period, cash flow fr
operations depends primarily upon changes in otirineme, as discussed more fully above under “Resif Operations,’changes i
receivables and payables, and net additions ordses in our overall portfolio, which affect thecamt of depreciation and amortizat
expense.

Cash used in or provided by investing activitienagally relates to capitalized costs incurred &asing and major building improveme
and our acquisition, development, disposition aathtjventure capital activity. During periods ofgsificant net acquisition andi
development activity, our cash used in such inagséctivities will generally exceed cash providsditivesting activities, which typical
consists of cash received upon the sale of pragseaind distributions of capital from our joint wenes.

Cash used in or provided by financing activitieserally relates to distributions, incurrence angaggnent of debt and issuanc
repurchases or redemptions of Common Stock, Comumits and Preferred Stock. As discussed previowstyuse a significant amount
our cash to fund distributions. Whether or not \aeéhincreases in the outstanding balances of deltgda period depends generally upor
net effect of our acquisition, disposition, devefgmt and joint venture activity. We generally use mevolving credit facility for workin
capital purposes, which means that during any gpeniod, in order to minimize interest expense,may record significant repayments .
borrowings under our revolving credit facility.

The decrease of $5.9 million in cash provided bgraping activities of the Company in the first ganmonths of 2010 compared to
first three months of 2009 was primarily the resflthe net decrease in the change in operatingtsassd liabilities as well as lower ¢
flows from net income.

The decrease of $21.3 million in cash used in itivgsactivities in the first three months of 201dnmpared to the first three months

2009 was primarily the result of lower capital emgitures, lower contributions to unconsolidatedliates and increases in change
restricted cash and other investing activitiestlpaffset by lower proceeds from disposition of-&ale residential condominiums.
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The increase of $18.8 million in cash used in fgiag activities in the first three months of 20ldhpared to the first three months
2009 was primarily the result of lower net borrogsron our revolving credit facility and higher commdividends resulting from an incre
in the number of shares of Common Stock outstandiagly offset by lower net repayments on mortgaged notes payable and highet
proceeds from the sale of Common Stock.

Capitalization
The following table sets forth the Company’s cdpitdion (in thousands, except per share amounts):

March 31, December 31

2010 2009

Mortgages and notes payable, at recorded book $ 1,466,44 $ 1,469,15!
Financing obligations $ 33,57« $ 37,70¢
Preferred Stock, at liquidation value $ 81,59 $ 81,59:
Common Stock outstanding 71,60z 71,28t
Common Units outstanding (not owned by the Comp 3,79¢ 3,891
Per share stock price at period end $ 31.7: % 33.3¢
Market value of Common Stock and Common U $ 2,392,44. $ 2,507,12

$ 3,974,048 $ 4,095,557

Total market capitalization with debt and obligas

Based on our total market capitalization of apprately $4.0 billion at March 31, 2010 (at the MaBdh 2010 per share stock price
$31.73 and assuming the redemption for shares ofin@m Stock of the approximate 3.8 million Commorit&Jnot owned by the Compan
our mortgages and notes payable represented 37.0u6 total market capitalization.

Mortgages and notes payable at March 31, 2010 emapised of $718.0 million of secured indebtedneiis a weighted average inter
rate of 6.21% and $748.4 million of unsecured indebess with a weighted average interest rate 41%. At March 31, 2010, o
outstanding mortgages and notes payable and fingratiligations were secured by real estate ass#isaw aggregate undepreciated k
value of $1.2 billion.

Current and Future Cash Needs

Rental and other revenues are our principal soofrfends to meet our short-term liquidity requirertee Other sources of funds for short-
term liquidity needs include available working dapiand borrowings under our existing revolvingditdacility and revolving constructic
credit facility (which had $398.9 million and $28million of availability, respectively, at April 22010). Our shorterm liquidity
requirements primarily consist of operating expsnseterest and principal amortization on our deltributions and capital expenditul
including building improvement costs, tenant imgment costs and lease commissions. Building impneves are capital costs not relate
a specific customer to maintain existing buildinflenant improvements are the costs required tmmisé space for the specific need
customers in spaces other than in new developnrejeqts. We anticipate that our available cash @ash equivalents and cash provide:
operating activities, together with cash availdbten borrowings under our credit facilities, wileladequate to meet our shtatm liquidity
requirements.

Our longterm liquidity uses generally consist of the ratient or refinancing of debt upon maturity (incluglimortgage debt, o
revolving and construction credit facilities, tetoans and other unsecured debt), funding of exjséind new building development or i
infrastructure projects and funding acquisitiondoildings and development land. Excluding captgdenditures for leasing costs and te
improvements and for normal building improvements, expected future capital expenditures for stbated/or committed new developm
projects were approximately $2.3 million at Mardh 3010. Additionally, we may, from time to timestire some or all of our remaini
outstanding Preferred Stock and/or unsecured asttrisies through redemptions, open market repwehgorivately negotiated acquisiti
or otherwise.

We expect to meet our liquidity needs through aluioation of:
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« cash flow from operating activities;
« borrowings under our credit facilities;
« the issuance of unsecured debt;
- the issuance of secured debt;
« the issuance of equity securities by the Comparti@Operating Partnership; and
« the disposition of non-core assets.
Financing Activity

Our $400.0 million unsecured revolving credit fagiis scheduled to mature on February 21, 2013iaclddes an accordion feature 1
allows for an additional $50.0 million of borrowirgpacity subject to additional lender commitmeAssuming we continue to have th
publicly announced ratings from the credit ratimgeracies, the interest rate and facility fee underrevolving credit facility are based on
lower of the two highest publicly announced ratinBased on our current credit ratings, the interat is LIBOR plus 290 basis points .
the annual facility fee is 60 basis points. We expge use our revolving credit facility for workingpapital purposes and for the shtmta
funding of our development and acquisition activatyd, in certain instances, the repayment of aflebt. Continuing ability to borrow unc
the revolving credit facility allows us to quicklyapitalize on strategic opportunities at sherth interest rates. There were no amc
outstanding under our revolving credit facility arch 31, 2010 and April 22, 2010. At March 31, @tdnd April 22, 2010, we had $.
million of outstanding letters of credit, which rexks the availability on our revolving credit fagil As a result, the unused capacity of
revolving credit facility at March 31, 2010 and A2, 2010 was $398.9 million.

Our $70.0 million secured construction facility,wliich $41.7 million was outstanding at March 301@, is initially scheduled to matt
on December 20, 2010. Assuming no defaults haveromt, we have options to extend the maturity fiatéwo successive ongear period:
The interest rate is LIBOR plus 85 basis pointsr €ecured construction facility had $28.3 milliohavailability at March 31, 2010 a
April 22, 2010.

We regularly evaluate the financial condition oé lenders that participate in our credit facilitigsing publicly available informatic
Based on this review, we currently expect our lesdehich are major financial institutions, to perh their obligations under our exist
facilities.

Covenant Compliance

We are currently in compliance with all debt cowssaand requirements. Although we expect to renmigompliance with the:
covenants and ratios for at least the next yegrem#ing upon our future operating performance, @rtypand financing transactions
general economic conditions, we cannot assurelyatute will continue to be in compliance.

Our revolving credit facility, $137.5 million bartkerm loan due in February 2011 and $20.0 millionkbgerm loan due in March 20
also require us to comply with customary operatingenants and various financial requirements, thioly a requirement that we maintai
ratio of total liabilities to total asset value, @afined in the respective agreements, of no muwaa 60%. Total asset value depends upo
effective economic capitalization rate (after deitug capital expenditures) used to determine tHeevaf our buildings. Depending ug
general economic conditions, the lenders have dloe dpith right to unilaterally increase the calgtion rate by up to 25 basis points onc
any twelvemonth period. The lenders have not previously é@gedc this right. Any such increase in capitalizaticates, without
corresponding reduction in total liabilities, coutthke it more difficult for us to maintain a ratd total liabilities to total asset value of
more than 60%, which could have an adverse effeaiur ability to borrow additional funds under ttewolving credit facility. If we were
fail to make a payment when due with respect toamur other obligations with aggregate unpaishgipal of $10.0 million, and such failt
remains uncured for more than 120 days, the lengwter our credit facility could provide noticetbkir intent to accelerate all amounts
thereunder. Upon an event of default on the remghdgredit facility, the lenders having at least786.of the total commitments under
revolving credit facility can accelerate all boriogs then outstanding, and we could be prohibitethfborrowing any further amounts un
our revolving credit facility, which would advergaiffect our ability to fund our operations.
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The Operating Partnership has $390.9 million ppatamount of 2017 bonds outstanding and $200.0omiprincipal amount of 201
bonds outstanding. The indenture that governs thatstanding notes requires us to comply with aqusiy operating covenants and vari
financial ratios, including a requirement that waintain unencumbered assets of at least 200% oftdtanding unsecured debt. The trL
or the holders of at least 25% in principal amoofeither series of bonds can accelerate the pa@mount of such series upon wri
notice of a default that remains uncured after &gsd

We may not be able to repay, refinance or exterydoarall of our debt at maturity or upon any accatien. If any refinancing is done
higher interest rates, the increased interest esgpeauld adversely affect our cash flow and abititypay distributions. Any such refinanc
could also impose tighter financial ratios and otmvenants that restrict our ability to take atsidhat could otherwise be in our best inte
such as funding new development activity, makingasfunistic acquisitions, repurchasing our seasitir paying distributions.

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

There were no material changes to our off balafmetsarrangements in the three months ended Marck030. For informatic
regarding our off balance sheet arrangements a¢ieer 31, 2009, see Note 8 to the ConsolidatechEialaStatements in our 2009 Ann
Report on Form 10-K.

Interest Rate Hedging Activities

To meet, in part, our liquidity requirements, werow funds at a combination of fixed and variatdees. Borrowings under our revolv
credit facility, construction facility and bank berloans bear interest at variable rates. Our kengr debt, which consists of secured
unsecured longerm financings and the issuance of unsecured sihtrities, typically bears interest at fixed raitthough some loans bi
interest at variable rates. Our interest rate mskiagement objectives are to limit the impact tdriest rate changes on earnings and cash
and to lower our overall borrowing costs. To achiglhrese objectives, from time to time, we enteo interest rate hedge contracts suc
collars, swaps, caps and treasury lock agreemermtider to mitigate our interest rate risk withpest to various debt instruments. We dc
hold or issue these derivative contracts for trgdinspeculative purposes. The interest rate oof @ur variable rate debt is generally adju
at one or three month intervals, subject to setil@s under these interest rate hedge contractsal¥deenter into treasury lock or sim
agreements from time to time in order to limit @xposure to an increase in interest rates withesio future debt offerings. We had
outstanding interest rate hedge contracts at Mat¢k2010.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

There were no changes made by management to thealcaccounting policies in the three months endéaich 31, 2010. For
description of our critical accounting estimatese $Managemens Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditiod &esults of Operatio
- Critical Accounting Estimates” in our 2009 AnndrRéport on Form 10-K.

FunDs FRoMm OPERATIONS

The Company believes that FFO and FFO per shardeneficial to management and investors and areritapt indicators of tr
performance of any equity REIT. Because FFO and pEOshare calculations exclude such factors asedighion and amortization of re
estate assets and gains or losses from sales i@ttimgereal estate assets, which can vary amongsof identical assets in similar conditi
based on historical cost accounting and useful ddémates, they facilitate comparisons of opegatderformance between periods
between other REITs. Management believes thatridatocost accounting for real estate assets iordence with GAAP implicitly assum
that the value of real estate assets diminishediqiadly over time. Since real estate values haseofically risen or fallen with mark
conditions, many industry investors and analysteeheonsidered the presentation of operating redaitgeal estate companies that
historical cost accounting to be insufficient ostandalone basis. As a result, management believegtihaise of FFO and FFO per sh
together with the required GAAP presentations, jl®va more complete understanding of the Commampgrformance relative to
competitors and a more informed and appropriatés lmaswhich to make decisions involving operatifigancing and investing activities.
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FFO and FFO per share are M@AAP financial measures and therefore do not reeset income or net income per share as defip
GAAP. Net income and net income per share as difiiyeGAAP are the most relevant measures in deténgiithe Company operatin
performance because FFO and FFO per share inctjdstments that investors may deem subjective, sschdding back expenses suc
depreciation and amortization. Furthermore, FFO giere does not depict the amount that accruestlglir® the stockholdersbenefit
Accordingly, FFO and FFO per share should nevecdisidered as alternatives to net income or nenirecper share as indicators of
Company’s operating performance.

The Companys presentation of FFO is consistent with FFO a@nddfby the National Association of Real Estateebtment Trus
(“NAREIT"), which is calculated as follows:

Net income/(loss) computed in accordance with GA
Less dividends to holders of Preferred Stock assl éxcess of Preferred Stock redemption cost @reying value;
Less net income attributable to noncontrolling iests;
Plus depreciation and amortization of real estases;

Less gains, or plus losses, from sales of deprieci@terating properties (but excluding impairmersisks) and excluding items 1
are classified as extraordinary items under GA

Plus or minus adjustments for unconsolidated peshipgs and joint ventures (to reflect funds froneigtions on the same basis); and

Plus or minus adjustments for depreciation and mation and gains/(losses) on sales related todinued operations.

In calculating FFO, the Company adds back net ircaittributable to noncontrolling interests in thpe@ating Partnership, which 1
Company believes is consistent with standard imgustactice for REITs that operate through an UPR&tucture. The Company belier
that it is important to present FFO on ancasverted basis since all of the Common Units mated by the Company are redeemable
one-for-one basis for shares of its Common Stock.
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The Company’s FFO and FFO per share are summarizbd following table ($ in thousands, except glesire amounts):

Three Months Ended March 31,

2010 2009
Per Per
Amount Share Amount Share
Funds from operations:
Net income $ 12,08: $ 13,20(
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interastshe Operating Partnerst (520 (694)
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interastsonsolidated affiliate (2149) (18)
Dividends on preferred stock (1,679 (1,679
Net income available for common stockhold 9,671 $ 0.14 10,81: $ 0.17
Add/(Deduct):
Depreciation and amortization of real estate as 32,49: 0.4z 32,44 0.47
(Gains) on disposition of depreciable proper (29 — (19 —
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interastthe Operating
Partnershig 52C — 694 —
Unconsolidated affiliates
Depreciation and amortization of real estate as 3,341 0.04 3,25( 0.0t
Discontinued operation:
Depreciation and amortization of real estate as — — 54C 0.01
(Gains) on disposition of depreciable properties (174) — (73) —
Funds from Operations $ 45,83: $ 0.61 $ 47,64‘ $ 0.7C

Weighted average shares outstanding (1)

Q) Includes assumed conversion of all potentiallytdititCommon Stock equivalen
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ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES A BOUT MARKET RISK

For information about our market risk as of Decen8fe 2009, see “Quantitative and Qualitative Disares About Market Riskif out
2009 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

SEC rules require us to maintain disclosure costaold procedures that are designed to ensurenfbamniation required to be disclosec
our annual and periodic reports filed with the SECecorded, processed, summarized and reportddnviiie time periods specified in -
SEC'’s rules and forms. As defined in Rule 13de) under the Exchange Act, disclosure controts @rocedures include, without limitati
controls and procedures designed to ensure thatniaftion required to be disclosed by us is accutadland communicated to managerr
including the Company’s CEO and CFO, to allow tiynéécisions regarding required disclosure. The Gomijs CEO and CFO believe tl
the disclosure controls and procedures of the Compad the Operating Partnership were each effectivthe end of the period coverec
this Quarterly Report.

SEC rules also require us to establish and maintaérnal control over financial reporting desigrnedprovide reasonable assure
regarding the reliability of financial reporting c&athe preparation of financial statements for exdepurposes in accordance with gene
accepting accounting principles. As defined in RLBa15(f) under the Exchange Act, internal control offieancial reporting includes thc
policies and procedures that:

« pertain to the maintenance of records that in meaisie detail accurately and fairly reflect trangatt and dispositions of assets;

» provide reasonable assurance that transactionseoeded as necessary to permit preparation ohdiahstatements in accordal
with GAAP, and that receipts and expenditures @iagomade only in accordance with authorizationsmahagement and directc
and

« provide reasonable assurance regarding preventidimely detection of unauthorized acquisition, wsedisposition of assets tl
could have a material effect on the financial stegets.

There were no changes in internal control overfiie reporting during the three months ended M&th2010 that materially affect
or are reasonably likely to materially affect, Bempanys internal control over financial reporting. Thevere also no changes in intel
control over financial reporting during the threenths ended March 31, 2010 that materially affecoecare reasonably likely to materiz
affect, the Operating Partnership’s internal cdrakeer financial reporting.
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PART Il - OTHER INFORMATION

ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AN D USE OF PROCEEDS

During the first quarter of 2010, the Company issaa aggregate of 92,971 shares of Common Stoké&ltiers of Common Units in t
Operating Partnership upon the redemption of adikmber of Common Units in private offerings exeriptn the registration requireme
pursuant to Section 4(2) of the Securities Act.Eat the holders of Common Units was an accreditegstor under Rule 501 of t
Securities Act. The resale of such shares wastezgésby the Company under the Securities Act.

ITEM 6. EXHIBITS

Exhibit

Number Description
12.1 Statement re: Computation of Ratios of the Comg
12.2 Statement re: Computation of Ratios of the Comg
12.3 Statement re: Computation of Ratios of the Opega®iartnershij
12.4 Statement re: Computation of Ratios of the Opegafiartnershij
31.1 Certification Pursuant to Section 302 of the Saés-Oxley Act
31.2 Certification Pursuant to Section 302 of the Saés-Oxley Act
31.3 Certification Pursuant to Section 302 of the Saek-Oxley Act
31.4 Certification Pursuant to Section 302 of the Saek-Oxley Act
32.1 Certification Pursuant to Section 906 of the Saek-Oxley Act
32.2 Certification Pursuant to Section 906 of the Saés-Oxley Act
32.3 Certification Pursuant to Section 906 of the Saés-Oxley Act
32.4 Certification Pursuant to Section 906 of the Saés-Oxley Act
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, each of the registrants has dalised this report to be signed ol
behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

HicHwooDs PROPERTIES INC.

By: /s/ TERRY L. STEVENS

Terry L. Stevens
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

HiIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
By: Highwoods Properties, Inc., its sole generatrpa

By: /s/ TERRY L. STEVENS

Terry L. Stevens
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Date: April 28, 2010







HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES AND
RATIO OF EARNINGS TO COMBINED FIXED CHARGES AND

PREFERRED STOCK DIVIDENDS

Earnings:
Income from continuing operations before equitgamnings of unconsolidated affiliat
Fixed charge:
Capitalized interes

Distributions of earnings from unconsolidated &fis
Total earnings

Fixed charges and Preferred Stock dividends
Contractual interest expen
Amortization of deferred financing cos
Interest expense on financing obligatic
Capitalized interes

Interest component of rental expe!
Total fixed charges

Dividends on Preferred Sto
Total fixed charges and Dividends on Preferred Stdc

Ratio of earnings to fixed charge:
Ratio of earnings to combined fixed charges and Digends on Preferred Stock

Exhibit 12.1

Three Months
Ended

March 31, 2010

$

11,00¢
23,82
(359)
681

35,25¢

21,80:
83t
47€
358
361

23,825
1,677

25,50¢

1.4¢

1.3¢€







HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.

RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES AND

RATIO OF EARNINGS TO COMBINED FIXED CHARGES AND

PREFERRED STOCK DIVIDENDS

Earnings:
Income from continuing operations before equity in
earnings of unconsolidated affiliat
Fixed charge:
Capitalized interes
Distributions of earnings from unconsolidated &ifis

Total earnings

Fixed charges and Preferred Stock dividends
Contractual interest expen
Amortization of deferred financing cos
Interest expense on financing obligatic
Capitalized interes
Interest component of rental expe!

Total fixed charges
Dividends on Preferred Stor

Total fixed charges and Dividends on Preferred Stdc

Ratio of earnings to fixed charge:

Ratio of earnings to combined fixed charges and Digends

on Preferred Stock

Years Ended December 31

Exhibit 12.2

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
32,38¢ $ 4606 $ 38941 $  2582¢ $  13,72¢
93,03t 108,27: 111,47¢ 106,57¢ 110,23¢
(4,555) (8,312 (9,749 (5,002) (2,900)
4,18 5,99/ 4,46: 7,74¢ 8,96¢

12504 $ 11056: $ 14514; $ 13515 $  130,02¢
81,98: $ 9285 $  9397F $ 9363 $ 97,43
2,76( 2,71€ 2,41F 2,37t 3,37:
2,13( 2,91€ 3,93( 4,16: 5,032
4,55¢ 8,31z 9,74¢ 5,00% 2,90(
1,60¢ 1,467 1,41F 1,40: 1,50¢
93,03 108,27 111,47¢ 106,57¢ 110,23¢
6,70¢ 9,80« 13,47" 17,06: 27,23¢
99,74: $ 11807 $ 12495 $ 12363 $  137,47¢

1.3¢ 1.02 1.3C 1.27 1.1¢
1.2t 0.9/ 1.1€ 1.0¢ 0.95







HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES AND
RATIO OF EARNINGS TO COMBINED FIXED CHARGES AND

PREFERRED UNIT DISTRIBUTIONS

Earnings:
Income from continuing operations before equitgamnings of unconsolidated affiliat
Fixed charge:
Capitalized interes

Distributions of earnings from unconsolidated &fis
Total earnings

Fixed charges and Preferred Unit distributions:
Contractual interest expen
Amortization of deferred financing cos
Interest expense on financing obligatic
Capitalized interes

Interest component of rental expe!
Total fixed charges

Distributions on Preferred Uni
Total fixed charges and Distributions on PreferredUnits

Ratio of earnings to fixed charge:
Ratio of earnings to combined fixed charges and Oisbutions on Preferred Units

Exhibit 12.%

Three Months
Ended

March 31, 2010

$

11,00¢
23,82
(359)
657

35,23(

21,80:
83t
47€
358
361

23,825
1,677

25,50¢

1.4¢

1.3¢€







HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES AND

RATIO OF EARNINGS TO COMBINED FIXED CHARGES AND

PREFERRED UNIT DISTRIBUTIONS

Earnings:
Income from continuing operations before equity in
earnings of unconsolidated affiliat
Fixed charge:
Capitalized interes
Distributions of earnings from unconsolidated &ifis

Total earnings

Fixed charges and Preferred Unit distributions:
Contractual interest expen
Amortization of deferred financing cos
Financing obligations interest exper
Capitalized interes
Interest component of rental expe!

Total fixed charges
Preferred Unit distribution

Total fixed charges and Preferred Unit distributions

Ratio of earnings to fixed charge:
Ratio of earnings to combined fixed charges and Pferred
Unit distributions

Years Ended December 31

Exhibit 12.¢

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
32,38¢ $ 454¢ $  3899: $ 26,046 $ 13,83
93,03 108,27: 111,39° 106,54( 110,23¢
(4,55¢) (8,312 (9,74%) (5,002) (2,900)
4,10z 5,97¢ 4,271 7,33t 8,51¢

12497. $ 11048 $ 14491 $ 134,91¢ $ 129,68«
81,98: $ 9285 $ 93,89 $ 9359 $ 97,43
2,76( 2,71¢ 2,41F 2,37¢ 3,37:
2,13( 2,91¢ 3,93( 4,16: 5,03z
4,55¢ 8,317 9,74¢ 5,00z 2,90(
1,60¢ 1,467 1,41F 1,40: 1,50¢
93,03 108,27 111,39 106,54( 110,23
6,70¢ 9,80¢ 13,47" 17,06: 27,23¢
99,74: $ 11807 $ 12487« $ 12360: $  137,47(

1.3¢ 1.02 1.3C 1.27 1.1¢
1.2t 0.9/ 1.1€ 1.0¢ 0.9/







Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

I, Edward J. Fritsch, certify that:

1.

2.

| have reviewed this quarterly report on Forn-Q of Highwoods Properties Inc

Based on my knowledge, this quarterly report dagscontain any untrue statement of a material dacimit to state a material f:
necessary to make the statements made, in ligtiteofircumstances under which such statements mead®, not misleading wi
respect to the period covered by this quarterlypre

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements,oéiner financial information included in this gteaty report, fairly present in
material respects the financial condition, resafteperations and cash flows of the Registrantfaara for, the periods presente:
this quarterly report

The Registrarg’other certifying officers and | are responsililedstablishing and maintaining disclosure contasld procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15€)) and internal control over financial repogtifas defined in Exchange /
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the Registrant and we ha’

(@)

(b)

(©

©)

designed such disclosure controls and proceduresaused such disclosure controls and procedures fesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the Registrant, including its consolidhsubsidiaries, is made kno
to us by others within those entities, particulatlying the period in which this quarterly reparbieing prepare(

designed such internal control over financial répgr or caused such internal control over finahoiporting to be design
under our supervision, to provide reasonable amseraegarding the reliability of financial repodirand the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in atmare with generally accepted accounting princij

evaluated the effectiveness of the Regissadisclosure controls and procedures and preseémtdéds report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contrnls procedures, as of the end of the period coveydtis report based on st
evaluation; ant

disclosed in this report any change in Registrants internal control over financial reporting thatcored during th
Registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter that haseri@ly affected, or is reasonably likely to maadly affect, the Registrand’
internal control over financial reportin

5. The Registrarg’other certifying officers and | have disclosedsdd on our most recent evaluation of internalrebotver financis
reporting, to the Registrant’'s auditors and the iA@bmmittee of Registrarg’ Board of Directors (or persons performing
equivalent functions)

(@)

(b)

all significant deficiencies and material weaknssisethe design or operation of internal controéofinancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the Regig’s ability to record, process, summarize and refiaincial information
and

any fraud, whether or not material, thatires management or other employees who haveniisant role in the Registrarst’
internal control over financial reportin

Date: April 28, 2010

/s/ EDWARD J. FRITSCH

Edward J. Fritsch
President and Chief Executive

Officer







Exhibit 31.

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

[, Terry L. Stevens, certify that:

1.

2.

| have reviewed this quarterly report on Forn-Q of Highwoods Properties Inc

Based on my knowledge, this quarterly report dagscontain any untrue statement of a material dacimit to state a material f:
necessary to make the statements made, in ligtiteofircumstances under which such statements mead®, not misleading wi
respect to the period covered by this quarterlypre

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements,oéiner financial information included in this gteaty report, fairly present in
material respects the financial condition, resafteperations and cash flows of the Registrantfaara for, the periods presente:
this quarterly report

The Registrarg’other certifying officers and | are responsililedstablishing and maintaining disclosure contasld procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15€)) and internal control over financial repogtifas defined in Exchange /
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the Registrant and we ha’

(@)

(b)

(©

©)

designed such disclosure controls and proceduresaused such disclosure controls and procedures fesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the Registrant, including its consolidhsubsidiaries, is made kno
to us by others within those entities, particulatlying the period in which this quarterly reparbieing prepare(

designed such internal control over financial répgr or caused such internal control over finahoiporting to be design
under our supervision, to provide reasonable amseraegarding the reliability of financial repodirand the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in atmare with generally accepted accounting princij

evaluated the effectiveness of the Regissadisclosure controls and procedures and preseémtdéds report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contrnls procedures, as of the end of the period coveydtis report based on st
evaluation; ant

disclosed in this report any change in Registrants internal control over financial reporting thatcored during th
Registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter that haseri@ly affected, or is reasonably likely to maadly affect, the Registrand’
internal control over financial reportin

5. The Registrarg’other certifying officers and | have disclosedsdd on our most recent evaluation of internalrebotver financis
reporting, to the Registrant’'s auditors and the iA@bmmittee of Registrarg’ Board of Directors (or persons performing
equivalent functions)

(@)

(b)

all significant deficiencies and material weaknssisethe design or operation of internal controéofinancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the Regig’s ability to record, process, summarize and refiaincial information
and

any fraud, whether or not material, thatires management or other employees who haveniisant role in the Registrarst’
internal control over financial reportin

Date: April 28, 2010

/s/ TERRY L. STEVENS

Terry L. Stevens
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial

Officer







Exhibit 31.:
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

I, Edward J. Fritsch, certify that:

1.

2.

| have reviewed this quarterly report on Forn-Q of Highwoods Realty Limited Partnersh

Based on my knowledge, this quarterly report dagscontain any untrue statement of a material dacimit to state a material f:
necessary to make the statements made, in ligtiteofircumstances under which such statements mead®, not misleading wi
respect to the period covered by this quarterlpre

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements,oéiner financial information included in this gteaty report, fairly present in
material respects the financial condition, resafteperations and cash flows of the Registrantfaara for, the periods presente:
this quarterly report

The Registrarg’other certifying officers and | are responsililedstablishing and maintaining disclosure contasld procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15()) and internal control over financial repagtitas defined in Exchange /
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the Registrant and we ha’

(@)

(b)

(©

(d)

designed such disclosure controls and proceduresawsed such disclosure controls and procedureg tesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the Registrant, including its consolidhsubsidiaries, is made kno
to us by others within those entities, particulatlying the period in which this quarterly reparbieing prepare(

designed such internal control over financial réipgr or caused such internal control over finahoiorting to be design
under our supervision, to provide reasonable amseraegarding the reliability of financial repodirand the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in atamare with generally accepted accounting princij

evaluated the effectiveness of the Regissadisclosure controls and procedures and preseémtdéds report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls procedures, as of the end of the period coveydtis report based on st
evaluation; ant

disclosed in this report any change in Registrants internal control over financial reporting thatcored during th
Registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter that haseri@ly affected, or is reasonably likely to maadly affect, the Registrand’
internal control over financial reportin

5. The Registrarg’other certifying officers and | have disclosedsdd on our most recent evaluation of internalrcbotver financis
reporting, to the Registrant’'s auditors and the iA@bmmittee of Registrarg’ Board of Directors (or persons performing
equivalent functions!

(@)

(b)

all significant deficiencies and material weaknssisethe design or operation of internal controéofinancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the Regig’s ability to record, process, summarize and refioaincial information
and

any fraud, whether or not material, thatires management or other employees who havenifisant role in the Registrarst’
internal control over financial reportin

Date: April 28, 2010

/s/ EDWARD J. FRITSCH

Edward J. Fritsch
President and Chief Executive Officer of the Gehera

Partner







Exhibit 31.

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

I, Terry L. Stevens, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this quarterly report on Forn-Q of Highwoods Realty Limited Partnersh

2. Based on my knowledge, this quarterly report dagscontain any untrue statement of a material daaimit to state a material fi
necessary to make the statements made, in ligtiteofircumstances under which such statements mead®, not misleading wi
respect to the period covered by this quarterlypre

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statement$,oéimer financial information included in this gteaty report, fairly present in :
material respects the financial condition, resafteperations and cash flows of the Registrantfaara for, the periods presente:
this quarterly report

4. The Registrarg’other certifying officers and | are responsildedstablishing and maintaining disclosure contanid procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15€)) and internal control over financial repogtifas defined in Exchange /
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the Registrant and we ha’

(a) designed such disclosure controls and proceduresawsed such disclosure controls and procedures fesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the Registrant, including its consolidhsubsidiaries, is made kno
to us by others within those entities, particulatlying the period in which this quarterly reparbieing prepare(

(b) designed such internal control over financial répgr or caused such internal control over finahoiporting to be design
under our supervision, to provide reasonable amseraegarding the reliability of financial repodirand the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in atmare with generally accepted accounting princij

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the Regissadisclosure controls and procedures and presémtdéds report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contrnls procedures, as of the end of the period coveydtis report based on st
evaluation; ant

(d) disclosed in this report any change in Begistrants internal control over financial reporting thatcomed during th
Registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter that haseri@ly affected, or is reasonably likely to maadly affect, the Registrand’
internal control over financial reportin

5. The Registrarg’other certifying officers and | have disclosedsdd on our most recent evaluation of internalrebotver financis
reporting, to the Registrant’'s auditors and the iA@bmmittee of Registrarg’ Board of Directors (or persons performing
equivalent functions)

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal controémfinancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the Regig’s ability to record, process, summarize and refiaincial information
and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, thatoiwes management or other employees who havenifisant role in the Registrarst’
internal control over financial reportin

Date: April 28, 2010

/s/ TERRY L. STEVENS

Terry L. Stevens
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Offickthe
General Partne







Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Highwso#roperties, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form QOfor the period endt
March 31, 2010 as filed with the Securities andhzxge Commission on the date hereof (the “RepdrtBdward J. Fritsch, President :

Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify,rpuant to 18 U.S.C. 8 1350, as adopted pursua@tda6 of the Sarbané3xley Act of
2002, that:

1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc

2) The information contained in the Report fairly mets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations of
Company

/s/ EDWARD J. FRITSCH

Edward J. Fritsch

President and Chief Executive
Officer

April 28, 2010







Exhibit 32.z

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Highwso#roperties, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form QOfor the period endt
March 31, 2010 as filed with the Securities andHaxge Commission on the date hereof (the “Repdrityerry L. Stevens, Senior Vi

President and Chief Financial Officer of the Comparertify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adbersuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc

2) The information contained in the Report fairly mets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations of
Company

/s/ TERRY L. STEVENS
Terry L. Stevens

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer

April 28, 2010







Exhibit 32.%

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Highwsddealty Limited Partnership (the “Operating Parth#”) on Form 109 for the
period ended March 31, 2010 as filed with the Séearand Exchange Commission on the date herbef“@®eport”),|, Edward J. Fritscl

President and Chief Executive Officer of Highwod®perties, Inc., general partner of the OperaBaginership, certify, pursuant to
U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 db#ibanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc

2) The information contained in the Report fairly mets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations of
Operating Partnershi

/s/ EDWARD J. FRITSCH
Edward J. Fritsch

President and Chief Executive Officer of the Gehera
Partner

April 28, 2010







Exhibit 32.

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Highwsddealty Limited Partnership (the “Operating Parth#”) on Form 109 for the
period ended March 31, 2010 as filed with the S&esrand Exchange Commission on the date herbef“@®eport”),l, Terry L. Steven:
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial OfficEHgghwoods Properties, Inc., general partner ef@perating Partnership, certify, purst
to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 8ffedsarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefiction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh1934; anc

2) The information contained in the Report fairly prets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations of
Operating Partnershi

/s| TERRY L. STEVENS

Terry L. Stevens

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officetha
General Partne

April 28, 2010







